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September 3, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the NH Department of Corrections to amend the acceptance and expenditure of the
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) sub grant from the NH Department of Justice (approved
by the Governor and Executive Council on May 2, 2018, Item #59, and amended on December 19, 2018,
Item #40), by extending the current end date from September 30, 2019 to September 30, 2020, to continue
the family focused parenting skills program for incarcerated men and women who engaged in substance
misuse. No additional funding is required. This amendment is effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval through September 30, 2020. 100% Agency Income

2. Authorize, contingent upon approval of requested action #1, the NH Department of Corrections
(NHDOC) to amend a sole source contract agreement, Amendment Agreement #2 (PO 1063655), with
Waypoint (VC #177166), Manchester, NH, (approved by the Governor and Executive Council on July
11, 2018, Item #25 and amended on December 19, 2018, Item #40), by extending the current end date
from September 30, 2019 to September 30, 2020, to continue providing personnel to administer parenting
cuiticulums for residents who engaged in substance misuse. No additional funding is required. This
amendment is effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2020.-
100% Agency Income

EXPLANATION

The RSAT sub grant award, in the amount of $21,204.00, from the NH Department of Justice (NHDOJ),
is due to expire on September 30, 2019. Per mutual agreement through a Memorandum of Understanding,
the NHDOJ has agreed to extend the Department's RSAT grant end date to September 30, 2020, with no
additional funding. Extending the grant end date will allow the Department to continue providing family
focused parenting skills to improve family relationships through the Parenting Wisely curriculum to
parents participating in the NHDOC Family Connections Centers.

The NHDOC is requesting approval of a sole source contract amendment. Amendment Agreement #2,
with Waypoint to*extend the contract end date from September 30, 2019 to September 30, 2020.
Waypoint was cited in the Department's RSAT grant as a key resource partner to provide experienced
social service personnel to facilitate the parenting curriculums-for the NHDOC Family Connections

. Centers. Waypoint is a non-profit organization that provides a wide array of social services, to include
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educational services to improve parenting, strengthen families, and prevent child abuse and neglect to
ensure the healthy development of children. The NHDOC Family Connections Centers strive to irhprove
the relationships between residents and their family members.

Parenting Wisely, is an evidence-based course, offered to residents of minimum-security status
participating in the Family Connections Center Program, that targets improvement of parent's behavior
while reinforcing a positive home life for children. This parenting program was launched with the
expectation of a positive impact on the prevention of the cycle of substance misuse that is unintentionally
taught to youth growing up with parents who engage in substance misuse and to provide real-life skills for
coping with stress with the objective of reducing the chance of reverting to substance misuse.

In the event that the RSAT funds no longer become available, State general funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully Submitted,

E. Ha

Commissioner

Promoting Public Safely through Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Accountability
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE AND DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

SECOND MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AMENDMENT

This amendment ("Amendment") is by and between the Department of Justice (DOJ) and the
New Hampshire Department of Corrections (DOC).

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU"), approved by the Governor
and Executive Council on May 2,2018, item #103 and amended on December ! 9, 2018, item
#5k, the DOC agreed to provide services through their' Parenting Wisely and other evidence-
based treatment upon the terms and conditions specified in the MOU, and in consideration of
payment by the DOJ of certain sums, specified therein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of part III; the MOU term may be extended at the
agreement of both parties via Amendment and by approval of Governor and Executive Council.

WHEREAS, the DOC and.the DOJ have agreed to amend the MOU in certain aspects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the MOU, and set forth herein, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendment and Modification of MOU

a. Completion Date Change from 9/30/2019 to 9/30/2020.

2. Effective Date of Amendment

a. This Amendment shall take effect upon approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

3. Continuance of Agreement

a. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, the MOU and the obligations of the parties hereiinder, shall remain in full

.  force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein. IN WITNESS

WHEREOF, the parties setlheir hand as of the day and year first above written.

LA

;n HanksTCoinmissioncr Date
Department of Corrections

'kiL%

Ca v.
Kathleen B. Carr, Director of Administration Date

Department of Justice

Approved by the Attorney General (Form,.Substance and Execution)

Attorney Date •
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
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DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION
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AMENDMENT AGREEMENT # 2

Helen E. Hanks

Commissioner

Robin H. Maddaus

Director

This amendment is between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through STATE
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS f"State" or "DeDartment"1. and
WAYPOINT ("Contractor""), a New Hampshire Non-Profit Corporation with a place of business
at 464 Chestnut Street, P.O. Box 448, Manchester, NH 03105.

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Contract ("Agreement 2018-25") approved by the Governor
and Executive Council on July 11, 2018, Item #25, with an effective date of July 11, 2018,
Amendment Agreement #I 2018-40 ("Amendment Agreement #1"), the Contractor agreed to
perform Curriculum Facilitator Services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Agreement as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and Contractor have agreed to make changes to the completion
date of the Agreement; '

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the completion date of the Agreement for an
additional twelve (12) months; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Agreement and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follow:

To amend as follows:

•  Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: "September 30,
2020";

•  That all other provisions of the Agreement and Amendment #1 shall remain in full
force and effect.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS;

SIGNATURE PAGE TO AMENDMENT AGREEMENT # 2 TO: Curriculum Facilitator

Services Agreement 2018-25 ("Agreement") and Curriculum Facilitator Services Amendment
Agreement #1 2018-40 ("Amendment Agreement # 1").

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF



CORRECTIONSONS ! .

E. Hank^ '

By:
Na

Tit e: om loner

Date:

WAYP

By:

STATE OF

Name: Borja Alvarez de Toledo
Title: President and CEO

Date

COUNTY OF

On this

undersigned officer, personally appeafe
0  before me.day 0

me (or satisfactorily
proven) to be the person whose name is signed above and acknowledged that he/she executed
this document in the capacity indicated above.

In witness thereofylhereto set my hand and official seal.

r.y
ry Public/Justi(^f the Peace

.  JtLL M. LOWELL, Notary Public'.^y^ommission Expires: state of Hampahim
ion Expires J^uary 18,2022

Approval by N.H. Attorney General
(Form, Substance and Execution)

Date

Approved by the N.H. Governor and Executive Council Date



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

!, William M. Gardner, Sccreiwy of Siaic of the Siatc of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thai WAYPOfNT is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on September 25, 1914. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received arxJ is in good standing as far as ihis office is

concerned.

Business ID: 62S8S

Certificate Number: 0004215672

ss
%

o

J*

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 27lh day of November A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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Business Information

Business Details

Business Name: WAYPOINT Business ID: 62585

Domestic Nonprofit
Business Type: ̂

Corporation
Business Status: Good Standing

Business Creation .
09/25/1914

,  Date:

Name in State of .. . .
Not Available

Incorporation: ■

Date of Formation in , >
.  . 09/25/1914

Jurisdiction:

-

Principal Office 464 Chestnut Street,PC Box Mailing Address: 464 Chestnut StreetPO Box

Address: 448, Manchester, NH, 03105, 448, Manchester, NH, 03105,

USA USA

Citizenship / State of ̂
Domestic/New Hampshire

Incorporation:

Last Nonprofit

Report Year

Next Report

Year

Duration: Perpetual

Business Email: NONE Phone #:NONE

Notification Email: NONE
Fiscal Year End "

NONE
Date:

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

1  OTHER / SOCIAL SERVICES

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/Businessrnquire/BusinessInformation?businessID=45306 8/22/2019



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. _KENNETH SHELDON. Board Chair_ do hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of WAYPOINT

(Agency Name)
2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 12/4/18 :
(Date)

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through Its
Department of Corrections.

RESOLVED: That the PRESIDENT AND CEO

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

PRESIDENT/CEO

(Title of Contract Signatory)

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the day of . -Oa I ^ .

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

(Signatur'd'of the Elected Officer)

County of j4illsk
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of , 20_ Jl.

btary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL) Suzanne M Shaw
Notary Public. State ot New Harr^Gt^e
My Commission fcxpires Oct. 31.2023

Commission Expires:

NH DHHS. Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1. 2005



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOIYYYYI '

06/25/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcylies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101'

NAME*^^ Andrea NIcklin
[S ex.. (603)669-3218 (603)64^331
Ai^ESS- an'ck''n@crossa9ency.com

INSURER(S1 AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A Philadelphia indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Waypoint

Po Box 448

Manchester NH 03105

INSURER 8 Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURER C Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of America 31194

INSURER D

INSURERS

INSURER F

COVERAGES' CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19-20All llnes REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED 8EL0W HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR
irouT
INSO

5DBR

WVDTYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/PD/YYYY)
poLiCy EXP

(MMfl)0/YYYY| LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE X^ OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO REKTEO
PREMISES (E« cccufrencel

PHPK20018e4

MEO EXP (Apy one p«f>cn)

07/01/2019 07/01/2020
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

X .POLICY □ JECT □ LOC
X OTHER' Professional Liability

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Aggregate- Prof liab

1.000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

S 2,000.000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa actideon S  1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per pwson)
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2001895 07/01/2019 07/01/2020 BODILY INJURY (Per ecddenl)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecddenO
Medical payments S 5,000

X

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR,

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 4,000,000

PHUB682316 07/01/2019 07/01/2020 AGGREGATE 4,000,000

OED X RETENTION $ ""O-OOO
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY. PROPRlETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MaridatOTY In NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bekwr

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

HCHS20190000118 (3a.) NH 02A)1/2019 02/01/2020 E.L. EACHAIXIOENT 1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

Fidelity & Forgery
105912196 04/01/2019 04/01/2020

Limit

Deductible

500,000

5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remaiiis Schedule, may be attached H more space Is required)

NH Department of Corrections is included as addiUonal insured with respects to the CGL as required by written contracL

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

-

State of New Hampshire Department of Corrections
P.O. Box 1806

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord NH 03301
1 • .

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
<ei1988-201S ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo arc registered marks of ACORD



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December31, 2018

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)
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Melanson
ACCOUNTANTS • AUDITORS

Heath

121 River Front Drive

Manchester, NH 03102

(603)669-6130
melansonheath.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Addrtional OfRces:

Nashua, NH

To the Board of Trustees Andover. ma

Waypoint

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Waypoint,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, ■
2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements



in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Waypoint as of December 31, 2018,
and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Waypoint's 2017 consolidated financial statements, and
we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements in our report dated March 27, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31,
2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The Consolidated Schedules of Operating Expenses
for 2018 and 2017 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such Information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements
or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

r:-.



other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report
dated March 26,2019 on our consideration ofWaypoinfs internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Waypoint's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Waypoint's internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

trjjLjajds.

March 26, 2019



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2018
(with comparative totals as of December 31,2017)

ASSETS

Without Donor

Restiictions
V\filh Donor

Restrictions
2018

Total

2017

Total

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Investments

Beneficial interest held in trusts

Property and equipment, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
AccRied payroll and related expenses
Other liabilities

Bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities

Bonds payable, net of current portion
Deferred loans - NHHFA

interest rate swap agreements

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated
Board designated

With donor restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

231,128
714,112
60,000

192,744

847,449 $

1,197,984

14,007,444

6.358.505

217,685
564,736

67,299

140.000

989,720

4,065,000
1,250.000
885.525

7,190,245

366,244

14,007,444

14.373.688

$ 21.563.933

847,449

2,132,950
1,679,591

$ 21.563,933 $ 4,659.990

4.659.990

4.659.990

$  4.659.990

1,078,577
714,112
60,000
192.744

2,045,433

16,140,394
1,679,591
6.358,505

$ 26.223.923

217,685

564,736
67,299
140.000

989,720

4,065,000
1,250,000
885.525

7,190.245

366,244
14,007,444
4.659.990

19.033.678

$ 26.223.923 $

$  890,431
884,748
40,000

241.546

2,056,725

17,630,209
1,867,906
6.266.362

$ 27.821.202

95,667

666.502

69,062
140.000

971.231

4,205,000
1,250,000
1.062.342

7,488,573

167,293
15,309,844
4,855.492

20.332.629

27.821.202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Activilles

For the Year Ended December 31,2018
(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31,2017)

Without Donor

Restrictions
With Donor

Restrictions
2016

Total
2017

Total
Support and Revenue;

Support;
Contributions

Govemment grants
In-kind contributions

Income from special events, net
Revenue:

Service fees

Other

Net assets released fiom restriction:

Program releases
Endowment releases

Endowment transfer to support operations

S  386,091
5,401,404

94,633
369,175

5,422,960
64,715

1,139,556

60,674

661,375

i  1,336,501

(1,139,556)
(80.674)

$  1,722,592
5,401,404

94,633

369,175

5,422,960
64,715

661,375

$  1,722,683
5,007,897
159,343
392,160

4,504,096

32,023

694.255

Total Support and Revenue 13,620,583 116,271 13,736,854 12,512.457

Operating Expenses:
Program services
Management and general
Fundraising

11,550,792

1,380,172
427,546

- 11.550,792
1,380,172
427,546

10,374,824

1,350,475
397.992

Total Operating Expenses 13.358.510 - 13.358,510 12,123,291

Change In net assets before
non-operating Items 262,073 116,271 378,344 369,166

Non-Operating Items:
Investment Income (loss)
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swap
Change in beneficial interest
Interest income

Endowment transferto support operations

(862,572)
176,617

1,608
(661,375)

(123,458)

(166,315)

(1,006,030)
176,817

(168,315)
1,608

(661.375)

2,426,476
106,042
131,927

699

(694,255)

Total Non-Operating Items (1,365,522) (311.773) (1,677.295) 1,970,869

Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as restated

(1,103,449)

15.477.137

(195,502)

4,655,492

(1,298,951)

20,332,629

2,360,055

17.972.574

Net Assets, End of Year $  14,373.686 $  4,659,990 % 19,033.678 $ 20,332,629

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
,  ... f^orthe Year Ended December 31. 2018(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2017)

Personnel expense:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll related costs
Mileage reimbursement
Contracted services

Subtotal personnel expense
Accounting
Assistance to individuals
Communications
Conferences, conventions, meetings
Depreciation
In-kind contributions
Insurance
Interest
Legal
Membership dues
Miscellaneous
Occupancy
Printing and publications
Rental and equipment maintenance
Supplies
Travel

Total Functional Expenses

Program
Services

$  6,614,360
742,615
743,794
442,792
560.035

9,103,596

718.608
148,344
34,183

298,245
90.213
62,170
250,245

18,132
24.352

495,619

55,968
95,167
94,685
61.265

$ 11.550.792

Management
and General

$  849,923
66.141
65,549
1.878

96.132

1,079,623

28,700

10,147
19,533
36,417
3,420
9,468

67,527
3,949
7,947
13,167
41,188
12,656
25,586
17,700
3.144

$  1.380.172

Fundralsino

P  316,127
19,071
25,122

413

6.553

367,286

8,249
2,302

1,000
2,466

3,913
2,674

11,700
22,916
2,029
2,655
356

$ 427.546

2018

Total

$  7,780,410
827.827
834.465
445,083
662.720

10.550,505

28,700
718,608
166,740
56,018
334,662
94,633
74.104

317.772
3,949

29,992
40,193

548,507
91,540

122,782
115,040
64.765

$ 13.358,510

2017

Total

$  6,928,730
781,346
751,020
421,527
547,074

9,429,697

30,330
744.299
154,946
45,719

316,750
159,403
74,678

300,049
27,320
40,626
43,065

426,568
68,101
109,469
92,986
59.285

$  12,123,291

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2017)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities;
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
Contributions restricted for endowment and long-
term purposes
Realized (gain) loss on investments
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Change In beneficial interest in trusts
Change in interest rate swap
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Contributions receivable

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities

Cash Rows From Financing Activities:
Contributions restricted for endowment and long-
term purposes

Payment of long-term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $

2018 2017

$  (1.298.951) $  2.360,055

334.662 316,750

(16,717) (265.005)
(136.619) 60,566
1,688.070 (2,049,713)
188,315 (131,927)

(176,817) (106,042)

170,636 (281,333)
48,802 (40,494)
(20.000) -

122,018 (31,103)
(101,766) (149,642)

n,763^ 47,675

799,870 (270,213)

(693,481) (15,732,031)
631,845 15,991,440
(426,805) (261,461)

(488,441) (2,052)

16.717 265,005
(140.000) (135.005)

(123.283) 130.000

188.146 (142,265)

890,431 1,032.696

1.078.577 $  890.431

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Interest Paid $ 317.772 $  300.049

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WAYPOINT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

1. Description of Organization

In 2018, Child and Family Services of New Hampshire changed its name to
Waypoint. Waypoint (the Organization) is a nonprofit organization, founded in
1850, that currently aids more than 20.000 individuals, statewide, through an
array of social services.

These services span the life cycle from prenatal to seniors, and can be grouped
into the following categories;

Early Childhood - Family Support & Education Services
Over 4.500 parents received education and support to improve parenting,
strengthen families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy
development of children. Over 500 young children starting life at a disad
vantage received critical services to ensure a good beginning and to optimize
their chance for life-long success. Some of the programs focused on early
childhood Include:

Early Support and Services - Early Support and Services provides family-
centered support and therapies to infants and toddlers who have
developmental disabilities, delays or are at risk of developmental delays.
Services work to optimize babies' cognitive, physical, emotional and social
development, and chance for success. Services are provided in the child's
natural environment (home, day care, playground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services - A number of different prevention programs are
offered in the home during those critical early years of a child's life. A
spectrum of services includes support to new mothers and those struggling
to parent; services for children with chronic health conditions; prenatal
services for babies being bom at a disadvantage into low-income families;
and programs to encourage positive early parent/child relationships and
promote optimal early childhood development. Services are provided by
nurses, social workers, developmental specialists, occupational therapists,
health educators, and home visitors.

Adoption - A licensed child-placing agency, the Organization has been
forming families through adoption since 1914. The Organization's adoption
professionals provide home studies and adoption services for families
looking to adopt and provide counselling and support to birth-parents who
are considering the adoption option.



Children, Youth, and Family - Intervention and Treatment Programs
The Organization contracts with the State of New Hampshire, the federal
government, and insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services for
children, adolescents and young adults. Programs are delivered in the home
schools, or community, and include mental health counseling and substance
abuse treatment, as well as a complex system of family stabilization and
preservation programs, child protection services, and services for at-risk youth
Some of the programs include:

Foster care - The Organization works with the State of New Hampshire in
placing children who have been rescued from dangerous home environments,
into safe, stable, loving homes. The Organization recruits and supports foster
families and works to facilitate permanency for each child.

Home Based Services - The Organization has a number of programs
provided in the family home that are designed to help families who are
struggling through daily life - where children are at risk. Services work to
thwart domestic violence, rebuild families, and to improve family
functioning. The Organization empowers families with the skills and
resources they need to provide for their children and become self-sufficient.

Runaway and Homeless Youth Services
The Organization is the sole provider of services for runaway and homeless
youth in Manchester and the Seacoast. A full spectrum of services features
outreach to at-risk youth that includes survival aid on the streets and basic
needs fulfillment at the drop-in center, as well as crisis intervention, educational
and vocational advocacy, housing, and case management. The Organization
also provides behavioral health and substance use counseling where needed
The Organization works with school systems, police, and other agencies in
addressing the needs of New Hampshire's homeless youth.

Senior Care and Independent Living
The Organization helps seniors and individuals with chronic illness or disability
to live at home safely and with dignity, and to maintain quality of life. Under the
title of Home Care, services are delivered by homemakers, companions, personal
care service providers, and LNAs. The Organization's caregivers go to client
homes to help with everything from cooking and cleaning to personal hygiene
medication reminders, mobility, travel to appointments, paying bills, help with
daily tasks, and communication with family members.

Additionally, the Organization runs two unique programs:

Camp Spaulding — Since 1921, Camp Spaulding has helped campers from
all types of backgrounds enjoy the benefits of a traditional, resident camp
experience. In 2015, the Organization formed a partnership with the YMCA
of Greater Nashua whereby the Organization will own the camp and the
YMCA will handle daily operations and summer programming. This
collaboration will combine a 96-year camp history, an exceptional facility,



strong community support, and the expertise of two premier New
Hampshire nonprofit organizations.

The New Hampshire Children's Lobby - Established in 1971, the New
Hampshire Children's Lobby is the advocacy wing of Child and Family
Services. The program's mission is to improve the lives of children and
families through legislative, judicial, and public policy initiatives. This com
bination of advocacy and direct service practice uniquely positions the
Organization to serve the best interest of New Hampshire children.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Change in Accounting Principle

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-
14, Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation of Financial Statements of
Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and
understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about
liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of
information provided about expenses and investment return. ASU 2016-14 has
been implemented in 2018 and the presentation in these consolidated financial
statements has been adjusted accordingly. The ASU has been applied
retrospectively which increased net assets without donor restrictions by
$926,308 and decreased net assets with donor restrictions by $926,308,
resulting from the reclassification of long-lived assets with implied time
restrictions as required under ASU 2016-14.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include Waypoint (formerly Child and
Family Services of New Hampshire) and Child and Family Realty Corporation
a commonly controlled organization. All inter-organization transactions have
been eliminated.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year
summarized comparative information in total, but not by net asset class Such
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States
of America (GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017, from which the summarized information was
derived.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instaiments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for lona-
term purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and
highly liquid financial instruments invested for long-term purposes, including
endowments that are perpetual In nature, are excluded from this definition.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is
based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions and a
review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when
deemed uncollectable.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year
are recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are
expected to be collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using
present value techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed
0 reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
In subsequent years, amortization of the discounts is included in contribution
revenue in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The allowance for
uncollectable contributions is based on historical experience, an assessment
of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Contributions
re^ivable are written off when deemed uncollectable. Management has
determined that contributions receivable are fully collectable, therefore no
allowance has been recorded.

investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the
date donation Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the
Consolidated ̂ atement of Financial Position. Net investment return/fioss) is
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Activities and consists of interest and
dividend income, realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external
investment expenses.

The Organization maintains pooled investment accounts for its restricted
endowment. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the
individual endowments based on the relationship of the market value of each
endoi^ent to the total market value of the pooled investment accounts as
adjusted for additions to or deductions from those accounts.
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Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The beneficial
interest in the trust is reported at its fair value, which is estimated as the fair
value of the underlying trust assets. Distributions of income from the trust
assets are restricted to use and are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions until expended in accordance with restrictions. The value of
the beneficial interest in the trusts is adjusted annually for the change in its
estimated feir value. Those changes in value are reported as increases in net
assets with donor restrictions. The assets in the trusts will never be distributed
to the Organization.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, if
purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets ranging from 5 to 50 years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets
or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the lease
term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related
depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do
not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset
may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result
from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair"
value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment in 2018.

Interest-Rate Swap

An interest-rate swap is utilized to mitigate interest-rate risk on bonds payable
The related liability is reported at fair value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position, and unrealized gains or losses are included in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets
and changes therein are classified and reported as follows;

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in
general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.
The Board has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net
assets for a board-designated endowment.
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Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or
certain grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are
temporary in nature, sucti as those that will be met by the passage of time
or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity while permitting the Organization to expend the
income generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of
additional donor imposed stipulations or a Board approved spending policy.
Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is.
when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the
applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures
are incurred, respectively. Contributions are recognized when cash, securities
or other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial
interest is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the
conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.

Donated Services and in-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services,
administration, and fundraising and development activities; however, the
consolidated financial statements do not reflect the value of these contritiuted
services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value
at the date of donation. Donated professional services are recorded at the
respective fair values of the services received.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional
Expenses.

Functional Aliocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized
on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

13



Measure of Operations

The Consolidated Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets,
including changes in net assets from operating and non-operating activities.
Operating activities consist of those items attributable to the Organization's
ongoing programs and services and include the Organization's annual
endowment transfer to support operations. Non-operating activities are limited
to resources outside of those programs and services and are comprised of non
recurring gains and losses on sales and dispositions, investment income,
changes in the value of beneficial interests and interest rate swaps.

Tax Status

Waypoint has been recognized by the Intemal Revenue Service (IRS) as
exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section
501(a) as an organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for
charitable contribution deductions, and has been determined not to be a private
foundation. Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt from federal income
tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization
described in Section 501(c)(25).

Both entities are annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from
Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, they are subject to income
tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to
their exempt purpose. In 2018, Waypoint was subject to unrelated business
income tax and filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return
(Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates, and those
differences could be material.

Financial instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash accounts with financial
institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may
exceed insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of
these accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts and contributions receiv
able is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates.
Investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, and
credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securi
ties, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment
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securities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially
affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. Although the fair values of investments are subject to fluctuation on a
year-to-year basis, the Investment Committee believes that the Investment
policies and guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare of the
Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or
most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current mari^et
conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer
broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable
or unobservable. Obsen/able inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable
inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based
on the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs
as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities In markets that
are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for
the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these
situations, inputs are developed using the best information available in
the circumstances.

In some cases, the Inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability
might be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those
cases, the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the
asset or liability. The categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based
upon the pricing transparency of the asset and does not necessarily correspond
to the assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.
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When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, Level 1 inputs are not available for certain assets and liabilities that
the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's consolidated
financial statements are:

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment assets
and unconditional promises to give.

•  Recurring measurement of endowment investments (Note 6) - Level 1.

•  Recurring measurement of beneficial interests in trusts (Note 7) - Level 3.

•  Recurring measurement of line of credit (Note 9) - Level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of bonds payable and interest rate swap
(Note 10) - Level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of deferred loans (Note 11)- Level 2.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and
contributions receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued payroll
and related expenses, and other liabilities approximate fair value due to their
short-term nature.
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or
other restrictions limiting their use. within one year of the balance sheet date,
are comprised of the following at December 31, 2018:

Financial assets at year end;
Gash and cash equivalents $ 1,078,577
Accounts receivable, net 714,112
Contributions receivable 60,000
Investments 16,140,394
Beneficial interest held in trusts 1,679,591

Total financial assets 19,672,674

Less amounts not available to be used within one year
Net assets with donor restrictions 4,659,990
Less:

Net assets with purpose restrictions to be met in less than a year (847.449)
Donor-restricted endowment subject to spending policy rate (4.25%)
and appropriation (90,650) 3,721,691

Board-designated endowment 14,007,444
Less: Board-designated endowment annual spending

policy rate (4.25%) (595,316) 13,412.128

Less total amounts not available to be used within one year 17,134,016

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next year $^_^^^53865^

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds desig
nated by the Board as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments
is restricted for specific purposes. The portion of endowment funds that are
perpetual in nature are not available for general expenditure.

Board-designated endowment is subject to an annual spending rate as
determined by the Board. Although there is no intention to spend from board-
designated endowment (other than amounts appropriated for general
expenditure as part of the Board's annual budget approval and appropriation),
these amounts could be made available if necessary.

As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has a
$1,500,000 revolving line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.
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4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31;

2018 2017

Grants receivable

Fees for service

Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance M

$  379,362 $  - $ 379,362 $ 628,244 $  (3,900) S1  624,344

338.650 (Z.QOQ) 334,750 260,404 - 260.404

$  718,012 $  f3.900) $ 714,112 $ 888.648 $  (3,9001 31  884,748

5. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at year end relate primarily to prepaid insurance and
contracts.

6. Investments

Investments at fair value consist of mutual funds totaling $16,140,394 and
$17,630,209 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Under the terms of the Organization's line of credit agreement (Note 9), the
Organization has agreed not to pledge these investments as security on any
other debt.

The Organization's policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of
investment income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends, or
appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of Trus
tees for 2018 is 4.5% of the average fair market value of all investments over
the previous twelve quarters.

As discussed in Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, the Organ
ization is required to report its fair value measurements in one of three levels,
which are based on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the
Organization's valuation techniques. Level 1, the most observable level of
inputs, is for investments measured at quoted prices in active markets for
identical investments as of the December 31, 2018. Level 2 is for investments
measured using inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices
for the identical asset in inactive markets, and for investments measured at net
asset value that can be redeemed in the near term. Level 3 is for investments
measured using inputs that are unobservable. and is used in situations for
which there is little, if any, market activity for the investment.

The Organization uses the following ways to determine the fair value of its
investments:
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Mutual funds: Determined by the published value per unit at the end of
the last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at that
date.

7. Beneficial Interest Held in Trust

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of three funds that are administered by
the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). Income from the funds is
to provide assistance to children attending Camp Spaulding and for capital
improvements to the camp. The fund resolution provides that distributions from
the funds can be made at the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the fair market value of the funds, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, was
$800,624 and $868,099, respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder
trusts. The assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the trusts.
The fair value of these beneficial interests is determined by applying the
Organization's percentage interest to the fair value of the trust assets as
reported by the trustee.

Percentage
Trust Interest 2018 2017

Greenleaf 100% $ 350,806 $ 401,167
Spaulding 100% 297,837 336,123
Cogswell 50% 230,324 262,517

Total $ 878,967 $ 999,807

Beneficial interest in funds held by others is reported at its fair value, which is
estimated as the present value of expected future cash inflows on a recurring
basis. As discussed in Note 2, the valuation technique used by the Organization
is a Level 3 measure because there are no observable market transactions.

Changes In the fair value of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
using significant unobservable inputs are comprised of the following:

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 1,735,979
Change in value of beneficial interest 131,927

Balance at December 31, 2017 1,867,906
Change in value of beneficial interest (188,315)

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 1,679,591

19



8. Property. Equipment and Depreciation

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented
below:

2018 2017

Land and land improvements $ 1.114,949 $ 1,114,949
Buildings and improvements 8,335,089 8,072,313
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 796,686 796,686
Vehicles 107,581 101,585
Software 285.372 166,592
Construction in progress 38,870 17,217

Subtotal 10,678,547 10,269,342

Less: accumulated depreciation (4,320.042) (4,002,980)

Total $ 6.358.505 $ 6,266.362

9. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a
bank. The line of credit expired on June 30, 2018 and was extended through
June 30.2019. The line is secured by a first lien on accounts receivable, double
negative pledge on all investments of the borrower, and carries a variable rate
of interest at the Wall Street Journal prime rate (5.50% at December 31. 2018),
adjusted daily. At December 31. 2018, the balance on this line of credit was $0.'
The line was not utilized in 2018.

10. Bonds Payable

During 2007. the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (the
"Authority") sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family Services
Issue, Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the Organization
to refund its Series 1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain improvements to
the Organization's facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued with a variable
interest rate determined on a weekly basis. Prior to issuing the Bonds, the
Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the "Swap
Agreemenf) with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counterparty") for the life of the
bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated with the Series 2007
Bonds. The interest rate swap agreement requires the Organization to pay the
Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in exchange, the Counterparty will pay the
Organization a variable rate on the notional amount based on the 67% of one
month LIBOR. Counterparty payments to the Organization were intended to
offset Organization payments of variable rate interest to bond holders.
Counterparty credit worthiness and market variability can impact the variable
rates received and paid by the Organization, with the potential of increasing
Organization interest payments. As a result, the cost of the interest rate swap
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for 2018 and 2017 is added to interest expense in the Consolidated Statement
of Functional Expenses. The bonds mature in 2038 and can be repaid at any
time.

The Organization is required to include the fair value of the swap in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any.
in the fair value of the swap in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For
example, during the bond's 30-year holding period, the annually calculated
value of the swap will be reported as an asset if interest rates increase above
those in effect on the date of the swap was entered into (and as an unrealized
gain in the Consolidated Statement of Activities), which will generally be indic
ative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap is below
market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the swap. The swap
will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities) if interest rates decrease below those in effect on the
date the swap was entered into, which will generally be indicative that the net
fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap is above market expectations
of rates during the remaining term of the swap. The annual accounting adjust
ments of value changes in the swap transaction are non-cash recognition
requirements, the net effect of which will be zero at the end of the bond's
30-year term. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization recorded the
swap liability position of $885,525 and $1,062,342. respectively. During 2009,
there occurred a downgrading of the credit rating of the Counterparty to the
letter of credit reimbursement agreement, which triggered a mandatory tender
of the Series 2007 Bonds in whole and a temporary conversion of one-hundred
percent of the principal amount to a bank purchase mode under the terms of
said letter of credit reimbursement agreement. Since it became evident that the
credit markets would not soon return to normalcy, the Organization elected to
convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate mode to a bank purchase
mode. This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in which the Series
2007 Bonds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 68% of the
.sum of the adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The bank
purchase mode commenced on July 31, 2009 and expired on July 31. 2014;
however, the expiration date was extended by the Counterparty and the Organ
ization had the option to convert back to the weekly rate mode. The Series 2007
Bond documents require the Organization to comply with certain financial
covenants. As of December 31. 2018, the Organization was in compliance with
these covenants.
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The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
bonds payable:

Year Amount

2019 $ 140,000
2020 150,000
2021 160,000

2022 165,000

2023 175,000
Thereafter 3,415,000

$ 4,205,000

11. Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated
June 7, 2005. The face amount of the note is $550,000, does not require the
payment of interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate
located in Dover, New Hampshire.

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated
May 22, 2007. The face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the
payment of Interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate
located in Manchester. New Hampshire.

12. Endowment Funds

The Organization's endowment consists of various individual funds established
for a variety of purposes. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted funds
and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As
required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, net assets associated
with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to
function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Board-designated Investments

As of December 31, 2018, the Board of Trustees had designated $14,007,444
of net assets without donor restrictions as a general endowment fund to support
the mission of the Organization.
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Donor-designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation
of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date for donor-restricted
perpetual endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.
As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as perpetually
restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment,
(b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accum
ulations to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the

applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added. The
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified
as perpetually restricted is classified as donor-restricted net assets until those
amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance
with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:
(1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the
donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions. (4) the
possible effect of inflation and deflation. (5) the expected total return from
income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the
Organization, and (7) the Organization's investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

The Organization considers a fund to be undenvater if the fair value of the fund is
less than the sum of (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts
donated to the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are required to be
maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor
gift instrument. The Organization complies with UPMIFA and has interpreted
UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in accordance with prudent
measures required under the law. The Organization had no underwater
endowment funds at December 31, 2018.

Investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a
total return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance
the principal of the fund and, at the same time, provide a dependable source of
support for current operations and programs. The withdrawal from the fund in
support of current operations is expected to remain a constant percentage of
the total fund, adjusted for new gifts to the fund.

In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification
is sought where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and inflation
rates are cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achieved through
investment styles. Asset allocation parameters have been developed for
various funds within the structure, based on investment objectives, liquidity
needs, and time horizon for intended use.
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Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be
computed on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction
costs. Total return is defined as dividend or interest income plus realized and
unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation at fair market value.

Spending Policy

The Organization's spending policy in 2018 is 4.5% (4.25% in 2019) of the
average total endowment value over the trailing 12 quarters with a 1%
contingency margin. This Includes interest and dividends paid out to the
Organization.

The net asset composition of endowment investments as of December 31.
2018 is as follows:

Total Net

Without Donor With Donor Endowment

Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Board-designated endowment funds $ 14,007,444 $ - $ 14,007,444
Donor-restricted endowment funds;

Original donor-restricted gift amount
and amounts required to be maintained
in perpetuity by donor - 1,679,406 1,679,406
Accumulated investment gains - 453,544 453,544

Total funds $ 14,007,444 $ 2,132,950 $ 16,140,394

Changes in endowment net assets as of December 31, 2018 are as follows:

Total Net

Without Donor With Donor Endowment

Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 15,309,844 $ 2,320,365 $ 17,630,209
Contributions 99,498 16,717 116,215
Appropriations from endowment (519,326) (80,674) (600,000)
Investment income, net (882,572) (123,458) (1,006,030)

Endowment net assets, end of year $ 14,007,444 $ 2,132,950 $ 16,140,394
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13. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following;

2018 2017

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Camp $ 113,699 $ 134,161
Child abuse prevention 153,836 322,306
Early inten/ention . 2 000
Family counseling ujeo 2oi860
Homecare 92,430 50,000
Human trafficking 30,000 6,000
IT and other projects 208,891
Teen and youth 234!433 131^895

847,449 667,222

Endowment:

Accumulated earnings restricted by donors for:
General operations 131,716 162,919
Camp operations 92.896 165,335
Other purposes 228.932 329.422

453,544 657,676

Original gift restricted by donors for:
General operations 133,407 133,407
Camp operations 548,988 532,271
Other purposes 997.011 997.010

1,679,406 1.662.688
Total restricted endowment 2,132,950 2,320,364

Not subject to spending policy or appropriation:

Beneficial interest in trusts 1.679.591 1.867.906

Total $ 4,659.990 $ 4,855,492
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Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses
satisfying the restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or
other events specified by the donors as follows for the year ended
December 31. 2018:

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Camp ^ 144,888
Child abuse prevention 295,614
Eariy intervention 2,000
Family counseling 10,200
Homecare 265,542
Human trafficking 26,000
IT and other projects 227,130
Teen and youth 168,182

1,139,556

Restricted-purpose spending-rate
distributions and appropriations:

General operations 13,335
Camp operations 30,959
Other purposes 36,380

80.674

Total ^ 1,220,230

14. Assistance to Individuals

The $718,608 in "Assistance to individuals" (see Consolidated Statement of
Functionai Expenses) is comprised of the following (rounded to the nearest
thousand):

Payment to parents of foster children $ 325
Housing assistance to youth at risk of homelessness 115
Gift cards provided to families during holiday season 65
Food for at risk youth 38
Other assistance such as medical, childcare,
transportation, and family activities 176

$ 719
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15. Functionalized Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses
that are attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore,
expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied.
The expenses that are allocated include clerical, IT, and administration, which
are allocated to program and supporting services based primarily on a
percentage of personnel costs related to programs.

16. Defined Contribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403Cb) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a
defined contribution plan that all eligible employees may immediately make
elective participant contributions to upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution is
permitted by employees up to limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code
and other limitations specified in the Plan. There were no contributions made
to the plan by the Organization for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively.

17. Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space under the terms of non-cancellable lease
agreements that expired at various times through 2018. The Organization also
rents additional facilities on a month to month basis. Rent expense under these
agreements totaled $182,368 and $141,787 for the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

18. Transactions with Related Parties

The Organization procures a portion of their legal services from a local law firm
that employs an attorney who also serves on the Organization's Board of
Directors. The attorney board member does not personally perform the legal
services. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the total legal expense from
related parties was $403.

19. Concentrations of Risk

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies of the
State of New Hampshire. As such, the Organization's ability to generate re
sources via grants is dependent upon the economic health of that area and of
the State of New Hampshire. An economic downturn could cause a decrease
in grants that coincides with an increase in demand for the Organization's
services.

27



20. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 26, 2019, the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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WAYPOINT

Consoldated Schedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31,201B

Salaries end wages
Employee benefits
Pe^^ related costs
MDasge reimbursament
Contracted services

Accounting
Assistance to IndMduats

Commimicafions

Conferences, conventions,
meetirtgs

Depredation
livMrtd eontributloni
Insurance

Interest

Lagel
Membership dues
Mlscelarwous

Occupancy
Prtitl^ end publcaSona
Rental and equipment
malntanertce

Supplies
Travel

Total

Child Abuse
Teen Treatment Chid

Family and & Family Abuse
Counselino Youth Strenotheninn Prevention

466,270 S  940,297 S  1,571,090 S 1,435,811
39,799 135,822 190.979 101,757
56,967 100,911 173,279 161,262
5,680 41.649 249,506 68,137
28,809 43,507 95,385 165,055

5,064 190,794 368,345 133,828
8,483 38,575 41,973 33,608

3,014 3,681 2,415 19,919
7,672 116,839 44,925 40,542
1,510 61,077 27,626 _

5,661 11,048 17,860 15,602
13,902 39,721 61.429 73,465

1,531 1,254 1,224 7,241
1,847 4,518 6,725 3,475

45,179 148,763 140,092 111,316
2,681 9,092 14,541 12,070

5,310 15,574 30,366 27,270
10,874 26,700 21,931 17,739

956 36.453 4.662 14.225

1  711.421 t 1.968.075 S  3.084.373 $ 2.520.762

Early
Interventton

33,660
37.284
18.647
20,355

4.840

1.544

7.670

3,228
13,803

8

1.052
10,107
3,003

5.186
3,589
989

Adoptions

Homecare

and

Pragnancy Chid Summer Total

Management
end

Counsellna MVbWCY Camo Prooram General

1,649,913 S  61.328 S 116,631 S  6,728 1  6,614.360 S  849,923
144.054 12,964 2,683 697 742,815 66,141
196,625 7,437 9,276 521 743,794 65,549
59,274 1.294 69 156 442,792 1,876
23,246 9.429 2,312 171,937 560,035 96.132

- - -
- - 26,700

3,014 10,071 - 7,494 718,608 _

16,451 1.998 1.522 564 148,344 10,147

1,649 3 1,957 1 34,183 19,533
7,670 4,363 2,191 64,553 298.245 36,417
-

- - - 90,213 3,420
6,877 711 775 166 62,170 9,468
13,903 7.944 3,972 1,966 250,245 87,527

-
-

- - - 3,946
6,366 3 502 3 18,132 7,947
5,881 648 174 232 24,352 13,167

27,452 3,222 3,597 5.669 495,619 41,186
12,054 435 1,220 672 55,968 12.656

6,293 2,660 1,465 623 95,187 25,686
12,408 654 710 71 94,685 17,700
3.233 134 147 464 61.265 3.144

i  2.196.563 $ 145.516 1 151.634 $ 263.179 1 11.550.792 S  1.380.172

Fundrahlnti

18,071
25,122

413

6,553

6,248

2,302

1.000

2,466

3.913
2,674
11,700
22,916

2,028

2.655
356

2018

Total

7,760,410
827.627
834,465
445,083
662,720
28,700

718,608
166,740

56,018

334,662
84,633

74,104
317,772

3,849
29,992
40,193

548,507
81,540

122,782
115,040
84,765

S 427.546 S 13.358.510

See Independent Auditors' Report.

29



WAYPOINT

ConsoBdatod Scheduia Operatb^ P»p^niifn
For the Yaer Ended December 31.2017

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payi^ related costs
Mlleege reimbursement
Contracted services
Accoimtir^g
Assistance to Irxflvlduals

Commufticatlons
Conferences, conventions,
meetkigs

Depredation
In-ldnd contrlbuttoru
Insurance
Interest
Legal
Membership dues
Miscellaneous

Occupancy
Printing end pubDcaSoiu
Rental and equlpmont
malntenarwe

Supplies
Travel

Total

Femfly
Courvmnnn

Teen
and

Youth

ChBd AtHJse

Treatment
& FamBy

Strenothenlnq

ChOd

Abuse

Prevenlloq
Early

Intenmnrion HomBcere

522,865
37,324

60,648
9,601

22,562

i  652,919
150,239
69,116
40,061
31,653

S  1,354,655
149,749

157,560
235,980

60,627

t 1,046,937
143,568
114,720
57,575
153,644

S 269,423
25,368
26,621

16,478
16,505

3 1,598,573
152,914
176,646
56,311

20,030

5,012

10,050
197,639
40,518

390,953

39,937
136,033

25,217
1,505
4,681

2,431

20,441

3,595

22,292

40

5,371

22.944

3,026

59,535

96,446
10,827

36,300

2,650

65,161

39,108
16,268

67,070

15,405

68,591

14,174

70,600

2,036

10,289

17

3,224

10,590

1,002
12,003

10,907
12,355

1,795

1,904
36,936

1,213

1,024

4,475

126,656
2,117

1,425

9,006
107,440
6,925

6,195

3,466

67,757
15.350

450

4,316

9,760

806

6,514
6,600

36,536

5,968

6,210
5,700

1.511

13,799
29,306

30.669

24,712
19,274
7 144

24,656

11,688

14.186

3,698
1,734

7,292
13,904

779.813 9 1.817.531 S  2.757 646 $ 1,993 779 8 412.763 S 2.147.669

Adoptions
end

Praflnan^ ChBd Summer
Coiaworino Advocnnv Camo

>  76,399 S 111,610 «  6,707
17,178 2,894 865
8,661 8,721 534
1,708 217 74
7,647 6,068 163,932

500 _

8,026
2,329 1,569 742

410 1,723 1
5,144 3,430 1,715
196

752 833 227
5,295 3,530 1,785

. 800 ;
176 220 278

2,575 3,394 363
764 855 1

1,610 1,317 839
675 598 47
178 219 275

» 130,493 S 148.696 j 186.391 $

Tolal

Pfoorem

S.B42.10e
860,093

646,231

416,205

465,766

744,299
145,664

29,650

246,160
135,600

64,563

229,449

16,203
30,645

393,419
33,999

86,533

82.604

56.964

10,374.624

Management
and

General

75,326
73,765

2.363

44,338
30.330

3,950

12,376

66,690

23,594

7,550

70,600
27,320
20,019
10,129
24.954

4,097

21,602

7,879
179

FundralBino

621,492 S 265,130 S
25,925
31,004

959

16,950

5,312

3,493

2,545

2,404
2,291
6,195

30,005

1,334

2,303

142

2017

Totel

6,926,730

781>16
751,020
421,527

547,074
30,330

744.269

154,946

45.719
316,750
159,403

74,678

300,049

27,320
40,626
43,065

426,568

66,101

100,469
92,966

59,265

%  1,350,475 » 397.992 $ 12.123.291

See Independent Auditors' Report
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Waypoint
464 Chestnut Street, P.O. Box 448, Manchester, NH 03105-0448

603-518-4000

Key Personnel

Name Job Title/ Position Salary
% Paid from

Contract

Amount Paid

from Contract

Borja Alvarez de Toledo President/CEO $185,411.00 0% $0.00

Colleen Ives Chief Operating Officer . $108,139.00 0% $0.00

Tony Cheek Chief Financial Officer $103,355.00 0% $0.00



Borja Alvarez de Toledo, M.Ed.

464 Chestnut Street, Manchester, NH 031051603-518.-43DD

alvare2detbfedob@waypbintnh.org

Professional Profile

•  A seasoned leader with more than .15 years of senior level non-profit management experience. .
•  Strong business acumen with emphasis on.developing processes to ensure the alignmentof

strategy, operations, and outcomes with a strength based approach to leadership development
•  Collaborative leader using systemic and strategic framework in program development, supervision

and conflicl resolution.

Professional Experience

Waypoint
Manchester, NH December 2013- Present

- President and CEO

•  Responsible for program planning and development, insuring that CPS meets .the community needs.
•  Advance the pubfic profile of CPS by developing Innovative approaches and building productive

relationshps with government, regional and national constituencies.
•  Acts as advisor to the Board of Directors and maintains relabonships with the regional Boards
•  Responsible for all aspects of financial planning, sustainabillty and oversight of CPS' assets
•  .Work with Development staff and Board of Directors to design and implem^t all fundraising

acbvities, indudin'g cultivation and solicitation of key individuals, foundations and corporabons

Riverside Community Care
Dedham, MA 2009-2013

Division Director, Child and Family Services
•  Responsible for strategic vision, planning and implementation of the programmatic, operational and

financial sustainability of a $17M division with more than 300 employees.
•  In partnership with The Guidance Center, lnc.'s board of directors, played leadership role in

successfully merging with Riverside Community Care, through a process that irivolved strategic
planning, analysis and selection of.a viable partner.

•  Provide supervision to managers using a strength based approach and a'collaborative coaching
model to leadership developmenL

The Guidance Center, Inc.
Cambridge, MA 1990 - 2009

- Chief Operating Officer ' 2007-2009
• • Hlr^ initially as Director of an intensive home-based femily program and through successive

promotions became "responsible for all operations in the.organization.
•  Responsible for supervision of Division Directors, strategic planning and development of new

initiatives.

•  Developed strategic relationships with slate and .local funders, and partnered with community
agencies to support the healthy growth of children and families.

Private Practice in Psychotherapy and Clinical Consultation
Madrid, Spain 1992-1990



C.OLLEEN_IVI..fV.E.S_. ...
464 Chestnut St.

Manchester, NH 03105/603-518-4362

ivesc@waypoinlnh.org

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Proaclive executive with a formidable record of driving systemic change and business expansion. Nimble
administrator with strategic planning, business process improvement, cost controls and performance management
' experience. Collaborative leader with inspirational and decisive management style who achieves exceptional,
rather than'expected.-.results. Catalyst for open communications towards a climate of learning to benefit company
and individuals.'

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Waypoint, NH • 2018-Present
Statewide private nonprofit that works to advance the well-being of children and families through an array of
community-based services.

Chief Operating Officer

•  . Oversees all aspects of program delivery including; fiscal and personnel management, quality assurance and
program development

ROCKPORT MORTGAGE CORPORATION, Gloucester. MA • 2008-2017
Leading national lender of US Housing & Urtian Development insured commercial loans in heallh'Care. multifamily
and affordable housing sectors.

Vice President, Operations & Quality Control
•  Report to principals with overall responsibility for achieving strategic objectives through oversight of the day-to

day operations of five multi-disciplinary underwriting teams by providing support at the transactiohal level as
well as in the developmeht-.of procedures and operating practices to match RMC's conbnued growth.

•  Ensure RMC'S compliance with their federally mandated Quality Control Plan through employee development
initiatives, monitoring of RMC'S operaUonal practices while integrating new HUD directives into RMC'S existing
best practices.

IVES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATES, Manchester, NH 2005-2016
Consultancy providing strategic planning and leadership development to public, private and nonprofit companies
•throughout New England.

Principal"
Design and facilitate customized corporate retreats, including strategic planning sessions, executive and Board of
Directors' training and development, creation or re^ffirmation of vision, mission and values and efforts to reralign
leadership around key priorities and future direction of the- organization. Integrate opportunities to shift
organizational culture to more open and candid communications.
•  Led an IB-nionth comprehensive change initiative that

o Resulted in the development'of a transition plan for the assimilation of an Interim Executive Director
including an operations plan that aimed to recalibrate the culture;

• * Transformed dlmale of accountability for a 555M client by implementing Balanced Scorecard strategic
measurement system. Designed^ coordinated and facilitated on-site internal and external analysis of 11 retail
locations in 9 states, analyzing threats and weaknesses in business to build a platform for growth.

CAREER NOTE: Concurrent with consulting enterprise (2006.- 2010),designed arxJ taught introductory and upper level
psychology and sociology courses at Granite State College in Concord. Manchester and Portsmouth, New Hampshire.



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING, Concord. NH • 200r:2005
Statewide nonprofit offering long-term care, employment, transportation, advocacy, and other community-based
services.

Acting Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
Led Internal operations, including service and program delivery, finance, human resources, fundraising and
marketing. Trarisformed organization's culture by promoting a cHmate of excellence, systemic solutions and
learning that l>enefiled the organization and individual employees. Evaluated operational results and facilitated
business processes and controls that promoted efficiency and Internal Information flow. Developed short- and
long-range operating plans. Supported up to 14 management-tevet employees, staff of 90, and $13M annual
operating budget. Held complete performance management authority as well as autonomy to engage In private
and state/federal contracts.

•  Increased revenue by 78% with more effective grant administration, successful applications fix* new
competi^e grants, initlabng a comprehensive development / fundraising plan, and increasing the fee-for-
service Dries of business.

•  Increased consumers served from 400 to 3,000+ Individuals within three-year period by restructuring existing
programs, developing new programs and Increasing program accountability with.monlhly management reports.

•  Established foundation for 36-monlh capacity building plan to enhance infrastructure and overall operations by
conducting full organizational audit and successfully presenting .to Board of Directors.

•  Expanded services and leveraged long-term grant opportunity through company acquisition. Successfully
integrated organizational cultures and business practices, Including human resource policies, management
teams and compensation/benefits.

•  Recommended, designed and implemented internal conbols and operating procedures for all departments
(Human Resources, Finance, Public Relations/ OevelopmenL Long-Term Care, Community Living and
Employment Services). '

•  Increased efficiency, raised credibility of financial reporting and reduced headcount by implementing state of
the art technology with expertise of retained IT consultanL

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION. SERVICES FOR
BLIND AND VISUALLY IMPAlREO;Concord, NH • 1992-2000 .
Statewide organization provkJihg Registry of Legal Blindness, Sight Services for Independent Living, Vocational
Rehabilitation and a Business Enterprise program.

Statewide Director

Managed professional staff of 8 to deliver services that Included 15-statewide rehalxlitative support groups, career
counseling and vending machine/food service enterprises In State and Federal buildings.
•  Awarded $1.2M 3-year federal grant to provide peer support services in 15 locations across the slate
•  Led Department to'highest rank in standards and benchmarks among ? other regional offices.
•  Enhanced team atmosphere by integrating 4 distinct statewide programs into a cohesive uniL
•  Cultivated relationships and formal partnerships with various stakeholders in the statewide nehwrk of social

and human services and employment arenas.

EDUCATION

.Doctorate in Human and Organizational Systems
Master of Arts in Human Development

Fielding Graduate University, Santa Barbara,' California

Master of Arts/CAGS in Rehabilitation Counseling
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology and Philosophy
Assumption College. Worcester, Massachusetts



ANTHONY F. CHEEK, JR.
464 Chestnut SL

Manchester, NH 03105 Phone:
(603)518-4113

Email: cheelct@wapoinfrih.org

EXPERIENCE: Wavoort Manchester NH

01/11'Present CFO

Oversee finance, human resource and informaticn technology functions for a private non-profit
, human services agency with 300 employees and a budget of $12 Milfion.

3/07- 1/11

Fountains America. Inc.. Pittsfield. NH

V7ce President/Director of Pnance

Overall responsibility for the corporate finance, human resource and informaUori technology
ft;nc6ons of a US holding company and its three operating divisions, all subsidiaries of fountains
pic headquartered in the UK.

US Ixidget responsibility $7 Million, Group budget $100 Million.
• Prepare and monitor annual budgets.
Provide monthly financial anatysis and forecasts to US President and UKgroup CFO.
Manage corporate risk matters including legal, insurance and compliance issues.
Oversee corporate tax matters and accounting sUndards compliance.
Manage accounting department staff of six for maximum effidency and
responsiveness to intemal-and external stakeholders.

Manage all human resource and payroll functions.
Manage IT infrastructure and support needs.
Work with US President and Divisioh Presidents on strategic issues, company growth
initiatives, product and regional cost analysis and acquisition/due diligence projects.'

2/9&- 3/07

Lakes Reoion Communltv Services Coundl. Inc.. Laconia. NH

Director of Finance (3/98-3/07)

Oversee finance, human resource and information technology fundions for a prfvate non-profit
human services agency with 300 employees, involving four corporate entities and a budgef of $20
Million.

Prepare"and monitor annual budgets, and report monthly to Board of Directors.
Negotiate funding with the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human-
Services.

Prepare and manage contracls with funding sources and vendors.
Supervision of 15 staff in finance, human resources and other administratrve
functions.

Administer the agency's personnel polities, compensation and benefit plans.
Ensure compliance with state and federal labor regulations.

Oversee the installation and support of agency computer systems and networks.
Implemented new IT network In^structure for satellite offices tp improve



communication and optimize operations.

Implemented new Medicaid biiling and data collection software system.
Manage all corporate risk management including legal issues, insurance coverage
and corporate compliance" matters.

Assistant Controller .

Manage Accounting department responsible for five Interrelated corporations.
Oversee general ledgers for ail corporations including timely monthly closings and
account recondliations. .

Present financial statements at monthly Board meeting!
Manage staff of five Including AIR, A/P. and G/L staff.

Responsible for coordination of annual audits.
Assist in preparation and maintenance of annual budgets.
Converted general ledger soflv5are from an In-house system to Solomon IV, a Windows
based multi-company software system.
R&sponsiblo for the startup of two new corporations.

Provide Bcecutive Directors with accurate and timely operating statements and finaricial
analysis

Responsible for daily cash management and banking relationships.

11/B7-Z/96 Bovd's Potato Ohio Co.. Inc.. Lvnn. MA

Controller/General Manager
•  Prepared and ̂ alyzed monthly profit and loss stalembnL
•  Monitored and contrcJIed the flow of cash receipts and distxjrsements.
•  Researched, designed specifications for and implemented a computer system to

automate order entry, A/R, A/P, and inventory confrol, reducing data entjy by 25% and
improving inventory control.

•  Coordinated annual audits.

•  Administered group insurance plans and workers compensation program. Introduced
new programs thatresulted in savings to company and reduced workplace acddents.

•  Ren^otialed union contracts with union management
•  Managed afl aspects of transportation and distribution, to ensure prompt delrveries and

customer satisfaction.

•  Supervised a staff of 20 including office, warehouse and transportation personnel.

EDUCATION:

19B6 Bachelor of Science in Business, A.dfrijnistration
UnlversiW of New Hampshire. Durham NH

COMPUTER SKILLS: ■

Advanced computer skills including Microsoft Excel, Word and Access. • Solomon
Dynamics and Sage Accpac accounting systems. Crystal and FRx report writers.



GREGORY A. MAGOON

CERtlPICATrON

New l lainpshi'rc EclID #77332 Experienced Special Ediicaiion Adminisirarni- Expiration 6/30/2020
Experienced Educator - General Special Hd Expiration 6/30/2020

PROPBaSIQNA-trEXPERTENCE-

2016 - Present Granite State Higli Scliool - NH Dcparintent of Corrections Concord, NH
.Kf)rriii/ Iztitifnlioii CbofAiiuilnr

•  Coordinate ail aspects of Special Etiucation Services provided iluoughont the New Hainpsldrc
Department of Corrections Special Sclioot District.

•  Conduct intakes and complete educational screening on all individuals untlcr 21 coming into the NH
Dcpartmcrit of Corrections.

•  Monitor and offer ouc-on-one assistance to any saidcnt enrolled in courses that may have special
educational needs (rcgartiiess of age).

•  Serve as the liaison between the NH Dcparimcnt of Corrections and the NId Dcparitnent of Education in
conjimction avith the Intcr-Agcncy Agtccmcnt.

2003 -2016 Contoocoolc School-NFl North Coittoocbok, NH
IzHiutition CMOfHiiiiilcr

•  Dirccti design and ctJOttlinatc Spccial Education programs ant! sci'viccs for students with disabilities.
•  As a member of tiic Administration Triad Team, manage the daily operations of an alternative i\tid<lie/higii

scliooi program and ensure compliance >vith state and federal mandated Special Jiducation regulations.
•  Condiict'dircct sujxcrvision to all teaching staff and para-professionals, collaborate on cunicidum

rlcvclopmcnt and provide guidance for instruction and lesson <liffcrcntiation.
•  Confer witi) all lEP team members and cixmlinate related scrvicc.s (j,e. Specdi, OT, and Counseling).

•  As an Agency Trainer conduct Crisis Intctvcntion Prevention and Restraint Training for new staff and
present ongoing professional development workshops fox all agency staff.

2012 -2016 Contoocook School - Nf I North Contoocbnk, NH
Haftty Offiierl Locnt'm fCS hiridfii/ Conmniititr
•  Perform ihonthly facility safety Inspections, cootclinaic monthly fire drills and bi-annual disaster tirills.
•  Review, revise, and implctncnt school safety protocnls to ensure regulation compliance.

•  Eimction as location Incideni Commander in the event of an emergency/disaster.

2000 -2003 Contoocook School -NPl North Contoocook, NH

Pum/y .SovirL W'^oi'kv
•  Administer family asscssntents and provide rccommendntions for fiimily-rclatcdvissucs.
•  Provide on-call assistance for crisis interventions relating to family issues.
•  Counsel stuxlents whose behavior, school progress, or ccndiiinn indicated need for nssistnntc.

1997 - 2000 The Fold, Inc. Lyndonvllle, "VT
Dinrfor, Hoyj Horn

•  As livc-in Director, manage all aspects of a residential program for at-risk youth.

«  Responsible for supervision of Boy's Home counseling staff and Honre Manager.
•  M-inagc crisis interventions and iihplcmciii rcsnluiion strategics.
•  Monitor budgets and disbursements oFfunris for residential operation.

1990 -1997 Nc\yport City Police Department •" Ncsx'port, VT
Comuiiiiiftilioiu OJfiar

•  Receive and transmit emergency communications for police, fire, ambulance, and public works.
•  Assist patrol officers in processing individuals under arrest.

•  Responsible for sccuriiy/cnuftdentialiiy of department records and reports.
•  Periodically preform auxiliary duties io include s(>ccial events, jwrking cnfotccmciu, transports and escorts.



Grcj^oo' A. Magoon Page 2

EDUCATION

2010 -2013 Plymoutli State Uitivefsity
Mitsim oJVidiKiition — BdimiimnI l^iidtfshipl SelmlAdmhusfratiott

200*1-2008 New England College
CompMed 27 nvdits loiiwds Mus/tr oj Ediiaiiioii in Gfiieivl Sptri/d Bdm'nlm

1992-1996 ^ Johnson State College
l\tubelor of Alls in Psytliokj^-ftniplMsis'an Aiiok'sitnl Dmr/opintiil}

♦  C>rtidiiatcd Magjw Cum I.audc

'1982-1984 ' Cliamplaln College
Aisoriiilt ofSntnefiu Wnsintss Adiuiiiislnitioh

PROPESSIONAI: DEVELOPltfENT ^ ^

2005 -2007 NHASEA and Granite State College
Lei'f/ JI Aftidcmy Piojrssioiinl Pnictiafor .S'p'ffiiit Bdiicniioii Adtniiiis/rn/ion

•  Cciiincatc of completion ~ 2007

Ij-rt/1 Arndmj' Pnjr.wiii/il hvi f/W forS'pidnl Izdnrd/hii Adininisliiifinii'
*  Cetiificatc of completion - 2006

Plymouth, NH

Heimiker, NH

Johnson, VT

Burlington, VT

Concord, NH

PROPESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS/COMMUNITY ACTIViTlRS ^ ^ ^

• Member - NH Association of Special Education Administrators (NHASEA)

• Member - NH Private Special Education Asjociation (NHPSEA)

<  Mcriibcr - NH Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team

•  Member — NH Exteixlcd Lcarnitig Opportunity Nenvork (HT-GN)

•  Nominated and Aj>pointcd to NH Non-Public School Advisory Coitttcil (NHPSAC)
•  'i'mincr- NFI North Agency Staff Dcvdppmcnt TiatningTcam
•  Team Member for SERESC Program yVpproval arnl Improvement Process
•  Kestoration Team Member to aid in rebuilding projects for tornado dantagerl somlicrn Indiana 2012

. •• Delegation Leader —People to Peojile Student Ambassador Program
•  Mission Team Member — Ukraine 2000, Russia 2003, Ukraine 2004, Htingary 2004, Kcnj-a 2007
•  Insri'uetor for Low Ropes and Belay
•  Former advisor and traihev for Police Dcpartmenr Youth Explorer Program

2010 Recipient NAFI - agency wide "Spirit of Community" award
2004 Recipient NFI North - New Hampsiiire/Muinc "Role Model" award
1996 Inductee"-- Chesamurc Honor Society

Ms. Laura Hardwlck, Education Director/Current Supervisor ~ (603) 271-1855

Ms. Nancy Pclrcc, Program Dirccror/Formcr Supervisor ~ (603) 863-0697

Mr. Barry Armiiagc, Pa.trur (Rc(ircd)/Mcntor — (843) 761-1831

Mr. Paul Roberts, Case Counselor-Case Mnnagcr/Co-wotl<cr ~ (603)-2?t-7356



Jeanmarie Foisie

Summary

, Highlights

Kind and compassionate Elementary School Teacher dedicated to creating an
atmosphere that Is stimulating and encouraging to ail students. Fosters positive
relationships with students, parents, administration, and staff.

Trained in Caplurlng Kids' Hearts
Trained in SNAP (School Nature
Area Program)
Title Iknowledge
Curriculum development
Marzano teaching philosophy

Wilson Reading Trained
Flexible and adaptive

Teaching Certillcate pre school
through 0th
lEPs knowledge
highly qualified

Accomplishments
2012 Teacher ol the Year

Chairperson of the Culture and Climate Commiltne fostering communication between the
school, parents, and community
Developed a partnership with Seniors and students that has been In place since 1994
Hotiored by CAS (Connecticut Association of Schools) in 1996, 1999, 2005, 2007 Created
an the Outdoor Classroom In 2004

Experience

September

2013 to June 2015

February 2009
to

June 2012

September 2005

'0
February 2009

Mllford, NH

Higganum, Ct.

(yiilford Elementary School
First Grade Assistant

Haddam Elemenatery School

Second Grade Teacher

Created a sale environment for students to thrive emotionally, socially, and
academically. Worked cooperatively with special education to meet the needs of
students with a wide range of disabilities.

Haddam Elementary School Higganum. Ct.

Math Support Teacher

Observed and assesseii student performance and kept thorough records ol progress,
reated benchmarks for grades k-4.



September 1909 Klllingi w» lb Elementfiry School Klltingworth ̂  Ot.
To

September 200S . Worked as a classroom teacbcr in grades K,2,3, and 4

Volunteering Experiences

November 2016 to Family Connection Center Men's State Prison, Concord, NH
Present

I lc||'i (;u-ili(a[c {uralivc iiticraciioiis hciwcco tiiiitairs and flicii'
^•hildrf.'ii. 1 l*>in['. iny (I'acliiu}', sKill.';, I Cacilitnic! |)ar<'ii(inj> siippni l pioui)':

Cfcaliiij'; ';cl prniocnis lo IdHou' in llic pi nnp in irpards fn iVsprrl and '•ilnirinj'..
du' p.i'nup in ■•('nn-alui«» ciirrcnl parcnlal (npic.s wlicrr as I I'csvai clj

llic issirc,:.' nnirc (U'«'pl\, {nfopralc my luiou tcdp.c nl" cldid (icvcNtpjiirnl
and rdii('aii<inal prnv,rains inio flirsr disrnsMiims p.ivfn dial flicrn 1:: a
v. idc l aiiiM' nl" a}'.r;; ol"clnldrcii ainonj'. (he iniindcs. r'anicipalc in assisiiiij'
slidT \riih spi-rial even Is s.iirli as iIm* Innnily I .ilcrary Diiy spansnrcd hy (!l .1 s'.

July 2013 in (.'AMA iVIanrliesirr, NH

vVtK'orali' Cnralnisi-d and in.'jdcrfcfl {'liildron. .•Mlriid 'iclinol nn.'clhi}*.';
and siippmi (In- clillfliTn din inp. ( (iin l licai inp;;, Mcrl rcpularly wiili
fliikli'cM and u'rilc rrpni ls coinminijcadnj'. wlial is in (In- (lu-ir hrsi inlj'icsl.



Education

1994

Central Connecticut State University

Master of Science Education

New Britain, Conneticut, USA

1969

Central Connecticut State University

Bachelor of Science Eiementary Education

New Britain , Connecticut, USA

1987

University of New Hampshire

Bachelor of Science Political Science

Durham . New Hampshire. USA



Patrick Michael Perkins MS. LADC
fPalrick.Perkiosgdoc.nh.gov)

EducatiTi

Springfield College School of Human Services
2001: Masters of Science in Human Services - Major: Community Psychoiogy

Springfield College School of Human Services
■  1999: Baclielor of Science in Human Services

Special Licensure and Certification

New Harripshii-e Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADQ
Pre and Post Test HIV/HEP C counselor

Employment

New Hampshire Department of Corrections (Northern Correctional Facility)
Berlin, NH.

2001- Current

Title: Clinical Mental Health Counselor LADC

Responsibilities; Providing specialized rehabilitative progi*ams to offenders for're-entiy
and recidivism reduction. Primary responsibilities include screenings, LADC assessments;
utilizing evidence based cognitive behavioral programs, psycho-educational classes and
individual/group counseling. Engage in trainings and professional associations to continue
to.enliance knowledge of substance abuse and criminal justice system to remain current with
best practices. Team member for the development of several programs during tenure,
including Substance Abuse Services program, and currently working on proposed
therapeutic community. Specialized duties include Intern Coordinator for the North
Country Facility NHDOC, overseeing.all aspects of the placement and scheduling of interns
at the facility and instructor for PST (Police Standards and Training) Corrections Academy. I
am currently working towards licenstu'e for LCS (Licensed Clinical Supervisor).

White Mountains Community College
Berlin, NH.

2004 - Current

Title: Adjunct Professor
Title: Criminal Justice Coordinator 2010-2012
Title: Human Services Coordinator 2012-2014

Re.sponsibilitios: Multi-disciplinary adjunct professor (Human Services, Criminal Justice,
Sociology, Humanities) whose primary responsibilities are to provide students with specialized



knowledge of the subject area and integrate theory with applications. Other responsibilities
include the development, modification and evaJuation of program syllabus and curricula that
apply to best practices and most current standards, attendance sheets, assessment, lesson plans,
classroom management and all other documentation. Program Coordinator for Criminal Justice
and Human Services. Coordinatoi" responsibilities include overseeing of adjunct professors in
their respective fields of study and assigning classes. Accreditation and standards for the
curricukims by nalionaJ associations for that paclicular field of study. Class registrations for
students m their respective cuiriculunis. Counseling of students with academic issues /concerns.

My Ciurent list of classes taught include:
•  CoiTeclions Operations
•  Drug abuse and the Law
•  Terrorism

•  Chemical Dependency
• Gangs (Tlieory, Prevention and Intervention)
•  Learning and Behavior
•  Legal and Ethical Issues
•  Introduction to Counseling

•  Introduction to Human Service
•  Criininal Justice Intemsliip land 2
• Q'iminal Justice Senior Project

Carroll County Restorative Justice Center
Conway NH
2010- Current • .

Title: Co-facilitator Substance Diversion Program
Responsibilities: Co-fncilitating the substance abuse education and prevention program for
youth and adults. Primary responsibility is educating participants about the consequences of
substance abuse, high-risk behaviors, exit interviews, referrals, follow up surveys for tracking
pujposes and statistical analysis. Additional responsibilities include substance use disorders
evaluations for court mandated Individuals this includes kreening, assessment, diagnosis and
recommendations for treatment. Tlie last responsibility of this position is as clinical
supervisor to staff who are working towards liccnsure,

Northern Human Services

Berlin, NH,

1999-2001

Title: Family Support Coordinator Region 1
Responsibilities: Provide or assist families with a developmentaliy disabled member in
acquiring supports and services identified by the family. Assist families in maintaining
supports, benefits and securing additional services required by family. Oversee fiscal budgets
for the Family Support Office, including individual Medlcaid allocations. Maintain up to date
records on supports and services provided to the family. Coordinate and arrange respite care
for eligible families. Hire, train and supervise respite providers for families. Maintain



employee records and training's, implement employee performance evaluations and
improvement plans. Effectively manage employee retention and handle employee issues .
appropriately per policy. Oversee payix)ll for employees. Develop or update policies for the
Family Support system to reflect clianges or needs. Attend regional and state agency
meetings as required. Speak to group and functions about developmental disabilities and
Family Support. Dissemiiiate information regarding benefit, services, aiW legislation that
may impact the family. Developed and implemented a self-advocacy group working with*
individuals with developmental disabilities following the state initiative on self-
determination.

Northern Human Services

Berlin, NM.

1991-1999

Title: Community Outreach Specialist (MIMS, Mental Illness Management Services)
Responsibilities: Coordinate and implement treatment plans, for consumers who have a
severe or persistent mental illness and dual diagnosis, (chronically mentally ill and substance
abusing). Co-facilitated dual diagnosis group for Individuals with substance/mental health
issues, utilizing cognitive behavioral therapy as the primary model for treatment. Other
responsibilities included group therapeutic interventions for dual diagnosed consumers
medication education, symptom management/recognition, individual psychotherapeutic
interventions, substiance abuse interventions, supportive counseling, crisis managemeiat and
additional duties as assigned.

Northern Human Services

Berlin, NH.

1988-1991

Title: Residential Advisor

Responsibilities; Working in a long-term high intensity residential facility for consumer.^
with severe and persistent mental illness, doing supportive counseling, symptom
management/recognition, crisis intervention, safe and timely distribution of medication, and
implementation of treatment plans. In addition facilitation of any activities related to
conununily integration and re-entry back into tlie community for mainstreaming purposes.

References Available upon request.



MONTQTTRMrnnNAT.n

. EDUCATION

BACHELOR OF SOCIAL WORK; Whcclock College, Boston. Massachusetts
Major: Social Work,

CERTIFICATION. University of Cincinnati. Cincinnati, Ohio
Subject: Thinking For a Change

CERTIFICATION. University of Cincinnati, Cincinnati. Ohio
Assessment: Ohio Risk Asstssmcnt

SOCIAL SERVICE EXPERIENCE

PROGRAM COORDINATOR. STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE

2016 - Present

•Oversees and supervises assigned service staff while they are conducting cognitive behavioral group Thinking for a Change
•Evaluates program effectiveness and conducts progress reviews for performance improvement
•Maintains and monitors data related to inmates' minimum parole date ar\d programming thereby assuring optimal match of client needs with
program scheduling
•Consults with various departments within the Department of Corrections to assure continuity of care and a seamless case plan

CORRECTIONS COUNSELOR/CASE MANAGER. STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE

2012-2016

•Conduct Ohio EUsk Assessment on incoming inmates and provide written summaries
•Maintairts certifications that are necessary to perfoim job duties and responsibilities ,
-Prepare parole synopsis for adult parole board and attend parole hearings
•Train new case rnanagers on department policies and case management functions
-Interview inmates requesting a protective custody board for clarity and understanding of issue
-Facilitates regular contact with outside agencies and programs such as alcohol f drug treatment facilities and mental health agencies
for successful re-entry of population
•Assist inmates with resolving pending legal issues prior (o-parole
•Complete online disability applications wiih.irunates and facilitate appointment with doctor to assess for disability
-Facilitate cognitive behavioral class; Thinking for a Change numerous times per year.
•Prepare and conduct monthly class boards throughout the facility at all levels of classiGcation
-Consults with numerous DOC departments to assure continuity of care and a seamless case plan

PARENT SUPPORT STAFF. CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES. MANCHESTER. NEW HAMPSHIRE

2011-2012-Part Time

•Conducted weekly home visits with pregnant women and mothers of children under the age of one
•Provided support and education on the stages of development during pregnancy -and infwcy
-Connected clients with resources within their community
-Developed case plans with mothers addressing Uie child's needs as well as their own

INTAKE COORDINATORySUPERVISOR. FAMILIES IN TRANSITION. MANCHESTER. NEW HAMPSHIRE

2008-2012

-Supervised intake interviews, addressed incomplete files and managed intake schedules for case managers
-Educaied case managers and interns on eligibility procedures to ensure they were following agency, state and federal guideline
•Managed intern and group evaluations in conjunction with college professors
•Directed The Homel^ Management Information System for the agency
•Coordinated relationships with area homeless shelters to ensure access to programs



CASE MANAGER. FAMILIES IN TRANSITION. MANCHESTER. NEW HAMPSHIRE

2002-2008

-Provided support (o clients applying for disability and attended appeal hearings
-Designed, implemented and coordinated individual case plans forclients-wiihin the homeless population
-Maintained collateral contacts with homeless shelters, alcohol /drug ireaimcnt facilities and mental health agencies within the greater
Manchester and Concord area for referraJ purposes
-Counseled clients on independent living skills, home and work adjustments and parenting
•Supervised and o^aniacd team meetings involving community agencies
-Provided on call clinical-support for families in crisis

FAMILY WORKER. SOUTHERN NH SERVICES. MANCHESTER. NEW HAMPSHIRE
1999-2002

-Assisted in setting fainlly goals and creating plans ofoction
-Conducted weekly home visits lb assist in follow through of action plans
-Participated in ongoing Head Start recruitment
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G&C
November 29,2018 Pending

Approved

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Item-# ^
and the Honorable Executive Council

Stale House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the NH Department of Corrections to amend the acceptance and expenditure of the Residential
Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) sub grant from the NH Department of Justice (originally approved by the
Governor and Executive Council on May 2, 2018, item #59), by extending the current end dale of December-31,
2018 to September 30, 2019, to continue providing family focused parenting skills programs for incarcerated men
and women with substance use issues. No additional funding is required. The amendment is contingent upon
Governor and Executive Council's approval of the NH Department of Justice request to extend, effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2019. 100% Agency Income •

2, Authorize, contingent upon approval of requested action #1, the NH Department of Corrections to amend a

sole, source contract agreement, Amendment Agreement #1 (PO 1063655), with Waypoint (formerly known as
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire) (VC #177166), Manchester, NH, to continue providing personnel
to administer parenting curriculums for persons under departmental control with substance misuse issues, by
extending the contract completion date from December 31, 2018 to September 30, 2019, effective upon Governor
and Executive CounciT approval. This amendment is a no cost time extension. The original agreement was
approved by Governor and Executive Council on July 11, 2018, Item #25. 100% Agency Income

Funds are available in the following account:

Department of Corrcction Grants, Fatherhood Grant, 02-46-46-460510-83340000, with funds contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of Federal funds.

EXPLANATION

The Department is requesting approval of a sole source contract amendment with Waypoint (formerly Child and
Family Services), as cited in the NH Department of Corrections (NHDOC) Residential Substance Abuse

Treatment (RSAT) grant proposal as a key partnership resource to provide personnel to facilitate a parenting
curriculum within the NHDOC Family Connections Centers. Waypoint is a non-profit organization that provides

a wide array of social services, to include support and educational services to improve parenting, strengthen
families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy development of children. The NHDOC Family
•Connections Centers strive to improve the relationships between persons under departmental control and their

family members.

Promoting Public Safety Thiough Integrity, Respect, Professionalism. Coliabonilion and Accountability

1



NHDOC is currently utilizing the RSAT fiinding to support .a Parenting Wisely program at the Family

Connections Centers within the NH correctional facilities. The Parenting Wisely prpgra'm is an evidence-based
course that has demonstrated a reduction in teen alcohol and drug use, a reduction in aggressive behavior, and
improved family communication. The program targets improvement of parent's behavior (intervention) while
reinforcing a positive home life for the children (prevention). This pilot parenting program.was launched with the
expectation of a positive impact on the prevention of the cycle of substance misuse that is unintentionally taught
to youth growing up with parents who engage in substance misuse.

Parenting is stressful for those separated from their children for long periods of time due to imprisonment. The
endeavor to reunite with family members, exploring job potentials, and striving to stay clean and sober are
additional stressors. Parenting Wisely introduces real-life skills for coping with stress; thus reducing the chances
of reverting to substance misuse. T*he program is available to minimum security men and women residents who
participate in the Family Connections Center program.

Waypoint will provide experienced social service personnel to administer the Parenting Wisely curriculum and
oversee parenting support groups.

The RSAT sub grant award in the amount of $21,204.00 from the NH Department of Justice fNHDOJ) is due to
expire on December 31, 2018. Per mutual agreement, NHDOJ has agreed to extend, with no additional funding,
the RSAT sub award to NHDOC. to allow sufficient time to permit' persons under departmental control who are

parents with substance misuse issues to benefit from the Parenting Wisely program. NHDOC's request to extend
the RSAT project end date to September 30, 2019 is contingent upon the Governor and Executive Council's
approval of NHDOJ's submitted action to extend the Federal RSAT grant.

Additionally, J^DOC requests approval of a no cost time extension contract Amendment Agreement #1 with,
Waypoint, which will extend the contract completion date to September 30, 2019. The original contract with
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire was in the amount of $15,170.00 and was approved by the
Governor and Executive Council on July 11, 2018, Item #25, with a completion date of December 31, 2018.
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire legal name change to Waypoint was effective November 16, 2018.
Amendment Agreement #1 will amend the vendor narhe and the contract completion date.

In the event that Residential Substance Abuse Treatment funds no longer become available State general funds,
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully Submitted,

en Hanks

•Commissioner

PronKXing Public Safely Through Integrity, Respect, Profcssioiialism. Colbtxtration eitd Accountability
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE AND NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

FIRST MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AMENDMENT

This amendment ("Amendment") is by and between the Department of Justice and the New
Hampshire Departoent of Correctidhs ("Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement ("Contract"), the sum limitation of $21,204.00 for
services required upon the terms and conditions specified in' the Contract, and in consideration of
payment by the Department of Justice of certain sums speci£ed therein;'

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of paragraph III: Term of Agreement: the Meniorandura
of Understanding may be amended, waived or discharged by written instrument executed by the
parties thereto;

WHEREAS, llie CoiiUaclor and Llic Department of Justice have agreed to athend llie Contract in
certain aspects;

NOW'THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing^ and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract, and set forth herein, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendment and Modification of Contract

a. Paragraph III; Completion Date: Shall be amended from December 31, 2018 to
September 30, 2019.

2. Effective Date of Amendment

a. This Arnendment shall take effect upon Governor and Council approval.

3. Continuance of Agreement

a. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, the Contract and the obligations of the parties hereunder, shall remain in
full force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein. IN WITNESS

WHER£OF,:Ac parties set thi^ hand as of the day and year first above written.

issioner, hiM Department of Coirections Date
h'jlH

Notary Public or Justice of the Peace Acknowl^gement: . ,

,  c

Slate of pttlmpfUr/. County of On ■ 20/?, before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified as the Contractor, or satisfactorily
proven.to be the peirson whose name is associated, with the Contractor and acknowledged that
s/he ̂ ecuted this document in the capacity'indicated.

Si^rlature oTNotary Public or Justice of the Peace Name and Title of Nolary Public or Justice of the Peace'

lof2
LESUE A. BAffRFTT. Notary PulJtIc

New Hampshire '
My Commiaaion Expires PeUua/y 11.2020



KatMeen B. Can- Date

Director of Adnunistration

Approved by the Attorney General (Form', Substance and Execution)

i\ hmArk. iz\4f-9>-
Attorney / Dale
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD. NH 03302-1806

603-271-6610 PAX: 1-888-908:6609
TOD Access: 1-800-736-2964

www.nh.gov/Dbdoc

AMENDMENT AGREEMENT # 1

Helen E. Hanks

Commissiooer

Robin H. Maddaus

Director

This amendment is between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through STATE OF
NEW HAMPSHIRE, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS f"State" or "Department^'l. and WAYPOINT
("Contractor"), formally CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, a New Hampshire
Non-profit Corporation with a place of business at 464 Chestnut Street, P.O.^Box 448, Manchester, NH
03105.

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Contract ("Agreement 2018-25") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on July 1 1, 2018, Item M2S, with an effective date of July 1 1, 2018, the Contractor
agreed to perform Curriculum Facilitator Services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Agreement as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and Contractor have agreed to make changes to the contractor name
completion date of the Agreement;

WHEREAS, to identify the change of the Contractor's name from Child and Family Services of
New Hampshire to Waypoint;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the completion date of the Agreement for an additional
nine (9) months; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the, foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Agreement and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follow:

To amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.3, Contractor Name, to read: "Waypoint";
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: "September 30,

2019";

3. That this amendment shall become effective on the date the N.H. Governor and

Executive Council approve the amendment; and
4. That all other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS.

Promoiing Public Safely ihrough iniegrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Accouniabiliiy
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SIGNATURE PAGE TO AMENDMENT AGREEMENT # 1 TO: Curriculum Facilitator Services

Agreement 2018-25.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF

CORRECTIONS

C
By:

<lenName: Hank

Title: Commissioner

Date:

WAYPOTNT

By:
Name: Bbija \Mvarez cfe Toledo
Title: President and CEO.

Date:

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

On this day of 20 /^ , before meC ji(l ^ the undersigned officer,
personally appeared &ri«t to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose
name is signed above and acknowledged that he/she executed this document in the capacity indicated
above.

In witness thereof, I hereto set my hand and official seal.

A

otarvPubhc/Justice afthe Peace

My Commission Expires; .

jroval oy RH. Attorney General
(Form, Substance and Execution)

miitLOwai,NotefyPui3(to/' -A-
StBttofNowHampehiro / V •'*' v '** 'i

My Comml»»lon Bxpim Januoiy .l'e; 2022

cr ^

■"<

Date '

Approved by the N.H. Governor and Executive Council Date

Promoting Public Stfcly through Integrity, Respect, Prorcssionalism, Collaboration and Aecountobility
"• Page 2 of!



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify thai WAYPOINT is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to ininsact business in New Hampshire on September 25, 1914. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 62585

Certificate Number 0004215672

SI OBf

O

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.tcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 27th day of November A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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AFFIDAVIT OF AMENDMENT

OF -

Child afxj'Familv Services ol New Hampshire

A NEW HAMPSHIRE NONPROFIT CORPORATION

VNiltiam Conrad the undersigned, being Che Chlnnsn ol the Board ot Truateei

(Note.1) of the 8tx)ve named New Hampshire nonproRt corporation, do hereby certify that a rneetir>g was

held for the purpose of amerxling the articles of agreement artd Ihe fotlowtng amendmentfs) were

approved l>y a ma)brtty vole of the corporatlori's Trustees (Note 2)
•  U •

The name of the Corporation shall be changed to: Waypoint

Effective as of Novemt>er t6. 201B.

(If mora cpaoa h naaoM.attaee •ddUienal an««l<s).]

A (rue record, attest:

PrinI or type name:

THJe;

Date aigned;

(Signeiurc)

William Conrad.

Chatrmen of the Ooerd of Tn/aieet

i

Notes: 1. Clerk, secretary or other officer.

2. Enter either'Board ol Directors'or Trustees'. -

OtSCLAiMER: ■ All documents filed vftih the Corporation Division become putSIc records end wrVI be avaiieble-for
pubtfc Inspection in cKher tartgible or eleOrortic form.

Mailing Address -Cerporatlon Dlvjslon, NH Dept. of Slate, 107 N Main St. Rm 204, Concord. NH 03301 •ASOS
Physical Location • Stata House'Annex, 3rd Floor, Rih 317, 2S CapMol SL Concord, NH

File a CQOV with C^eik of (he town/cltv of the nrinclnxLolBcnjif huelnnec
Form NP-3 (0/2019)



Statie of New Hampshire

Department of State

2015 NONPROFIT REPORT

Fikd

Date Filed: .12/2/2015

CITectivc Date: 12/2/2015

Dusineu ID: 62585

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Scale

BUSINESS NAME: CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

BUSINESS TYPE: Domestic Noaproni Corporation

BUSINESS ID: 62585

CITIZENSHIP: Domestic

STATE OF IHCORPORATION: New Hampshire

j'n VV."" -.yGUfO^^-RRlNClPAL.pFFIGEVbOf^
464 Chestnut Strcct,PO Box 448
Manchester, NH. 03105. USA

464 Chestnut StreecPO Box 448

Manchester, NH, 03105, USA

*  'a /•.iPRIN.ClP'ALiPlW t

NAICS CODE •NAICS SUB CODE

OTHER/SOCIALSERVICES

"J:'-.). "t-..
NAME BUSINESS ADDRESS title

Borja Alvarez de Toledo 464 Chestnut Street, Manchester, NH, 0310S, USA President

Peggy Lambert 654 Raymond Road, Auburn, NH, 03032, USA Secretary •

Kirk Leoni 114 Reservoir Road, Weare, NH, 03281, USA Treasurer

William Conrad 76 Plummcr Read, Bedford, NH, 03110, USA
Chairmau of the Board of

Directors-

I, the undersigned, do hereby ccnify that the statements on this report arc true to the best of my information, knowledge and belief.

Borja Alvarezdc Toledo President

.signature TITLE

Mailing Address - Corporation Division, NH Department ofSiaic. 107 North Main Street, Room 204, Concord, NH 03301*4989
Physical l^ocation • Slate House Annex, 3rd Floor, Room 317,25 Capitol Street, Concord, NH

Phone: (603)271*3246 j Fax: (603)271*3247 | Email: corporaie@sos.nh.gov j Website: $o$.nh.gov
- Page I of I *



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1. _WILLIAM CONRAD,

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

,, do hereby certify that:

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of WAYPOINT .
(Agency Name) v

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 1/28/2014 :

(Date) ' '
RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a.contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Department of Correctioru.

PRESIDENT AND CEORESOLVED: That the

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to

execute any and ail documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,

or modifications thereto, as he may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

PRESIDENT/CEO.BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the^ day of

(Signature of the Elected Officer) -

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

(M /IsCounty of.

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

By

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

',^LM. LOWELL, Notary Public
Y  ■•''Stalia of Naw Hompehiro

'  January 18, 2022

<^^.^'-:CommimCTi-ExpLres:

NH DHHS, Oflice of Business Operatiofu
Bureau of Provider Relationship Manigemen't
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

L?^^davofy/^ .20/^ .

(Nouiary Public/Justice of the Peace)

July 1.2005



AC^RCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATS (Hkuoorrvvv)

11/19/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUEO AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE. COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT'CONSTrTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: If tha cartlflcata holdar Is in ADDITIONAL INSURED, (ha policy(ia8) must ba andersad. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED. 8ub)act (e
tha tarrnt and conditions of tha policy, cartain poltclas may raquka an andortamahl. A statamant on thls'ca/tlflcata'doaa not confar rights to tha
cartlflcata holdar In iiau of such andorsamantls).

pNooucea

FULX/Crosa Xnaurahca

1100 eia Straat

Hanchastar NM 03101

Andraa Hicklin"

[ip. F.. ("3) 669-3216 | .........n.
anicklinfcreaaag'ancy.coa

.  •' Msuaearsi affommnq covctuce NA4C S

■isuREB*;'philadalDhia Indaanitv Ina Co 16056

WSUBEO

Waypoint
Po Box 446 '

Msnchaatar NH 0310S

wsuAER BiCrainita .stata Haalth' Car* and Huaan 6at

msuacac:Travalara Caauaitv 4 Suratv Co of Aaarl 31194

MSUflCft 0 1 ■

wsuaca c: •'

atsuaca f :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:lfl-l9 AXl lines REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT POUCIES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE SEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED AOOVE FOR TH£ POUCY PERIOD
INOICATCO. NOTWUHSTANOMC ANY REQUIRCMENT. TERM OR CONOmCN OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAM. THE MSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLIOES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TOAU THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOTTIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE SEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

mST]
rWE OF MSUSANCe POUCT NUMBER LIMITS

COUHCnCIAL GENERAL LMm/TY

~~| CLAMS-MAOC H OCCUR

CEnVACCRECATE LBST APPUES AEIL

LOC»»OUCT

OTHER:

□ ss □
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EACH OCCURRENCE
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CENCIW.ACCREGATE
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lEiPtdswsi

1,000,000

100;000

s.ooo

1,000,000

3.000,000

3,000,000
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1,000,000

ALL OWNED
AUTOS
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SCHEDULED
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I ERWORKERS COMPENSATIOM

ANO EMPLOYERS'LUBIUTT
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T/l/IOli 2/i/seit E.L. OlSCASE • CA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICV LRAn .1.000,000

PidRlity C tcr^»ry

ProE«aoion»l LlAbility
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4/1/2011
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CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

janet.balbanEdoc.nh.gov

State of Nom Raaipahire
Departoent of Corrections
Attn; Janet Belben
P.O. Box 1G06
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRieED POLICIES BE CANCELLEO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WLL BE DELIVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICYPROVISIONS.

AUTHORUEO REPflCSEMTATNE

T rranggo3/JSC

ACORO 25(2014/01)
INS025 <201401)

Tha ACORO nsma and logo ara raglstarad cnariis of ACORO



June 15,2018

JUN19'18pm 4:02 OAS
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

PO BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806

H

Ro

T
elen E. Hanks

Commissioner

603-271-5600 FAX; 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access:. 1-800-736-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

bin.H. Maddaus

Director

G&C

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

Stale House

Concord, NH 03301

Pending

Approved U ̂ Zov8
Item #

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the NH Department of Corrections to enter into a sole-source contract with Child and Family Services
of New Hampshire (VC#177166), 464 Chestnut Street, Manchester, NH, in the amount of $15,170.00 to provide
part time personnel to implement family focused parenting curriculums for incarcerated men and women with
substance misuse issues, for the period beginning upon Governor and Executive Council approval, through
December 31, 2018. 100% Agency Income. (Federal at origin).

Funds are available in the following account:

Dqiartraent of Correction Grants, Fatherhood Grant, 02-46-46-460510-83340000, with funds contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of Federal funds.

Contract Aereement:

Account Description . SFY2019

102-500731 Contracts for Program Serv 15.170.00

Total Contract Amount 15:i70.00

EXPLANATION
s

This contract is a sole source contract as Child and Family Services was cited on the NHDOC Residential
Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) grant proposal as a key partnership resource to provide personnel to
facilitate a parenting curriculum within the NHDOC Family Connections Centers. Child and Family Services of
New Hampshire is a non-profit organization that provides a wide array of social services, to include support.and
educational services to improve parenting, strengthen families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure
healthy development of children. The NH Department of Corrections (NHDOC) Family Connections Centers
strives to improve the relationships between persons under departmental control and their family members.

The NH Department of Corrections will, utilize the RSAT funding to implement a Parenting Wisely program at
the Family Connections Centers within the NH correctional facilities. The Parenting Wisely program is an
evidence-based course that has demonstrated a reduction in teen.alcohol and drug use, a reduction in aggressive
behavior, and improved family communication. The pro^m targets improvement of parent's behavior
(intervention) while reinforcing a positive home life for the chil^en (prevention). This pilot parenting program

Promoting Public Safety Tlirough Integrity, Repect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Accountability

I



will be launched with the expectation of a positive impact on the prevention of the cycle of substance misuse that
is unintentionally taught to youth growing up with parents who engage in substance misuse themselves.

The goal of the program will be to give persons-under departmental control, who are p^ents, the skills needed to
improve family relationships. Parenting is extremely stressful for those separated from their children for long
periods of time due to imprisonment. Trying to reunite with fainily members, exploring job potentials,-and
striving to slay clean and sober are additional stressors. Parenting Wisely will introduce real-life skills for coping
with stress, thus reducing the chances of reverting to substance misuse. The program, will be available to

minimum security men and women residents who participate in the Family Connections Center program.

The collaboration between Child and Fainily Services and the NHDOC Family Connections Centers will provide
experienced social service personnel to administer, the Parenting Wisely curriculum .and oversee parenting
support groups.

In the event that Residential Substance Abuse Treatment funds no longer become available State general funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully Submitted,

en

Commissioner

Promoting Public Safety Through Integrity, R&^pect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Accountability
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and aii of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential'or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Corrections

1.2 State Agency Address
105 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

1.4 Contractor Address

464 Chestnut Sueet, Manchester, NH 03105

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-518-4000 '

1.6 Account Number

02-46-46-460510-83340000-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

December 31,2018

1.8 Price Limitation

$15,170.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Helen E. Hanks, Commissioner

1.10 State AgencyTelephone Number
603-271-5603

1.1 l^ontractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Boija Alvarez de Toledo, President & CEO

1.13 . Acknowledgement! State of/y/fl.tD

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
name is Signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

^: 1 ?. 1 SlgllfiGKIM of ilot^ Public or Justice of the Peace
= • r :&PKS'- : 5

%. /lUMyUd.
Notary or Justice(^ the Peace

1.14 Stad Agency Signa ure

Date:

1.15 Name and Titl^ of State Agency Signatory

Helen E. Hanks, Commissioner

1.16 S^pproval by the N.P

'  By:

Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

1.17 Approval W the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State''), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this'Agreemcnt to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hercunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in '
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("EffectiveDate").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contraaor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and seivices to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's booiks, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless' otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire,<any person who is a Stale
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, adminisu^tion or performance of this

0f4

Contractor Initials

Date



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Ofllcer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of DefaulfO:
8.1.1 feilure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses sufTered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9-2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% ofthc whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expir^on
date ofeach of the insurance policies. The certificatc(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA ch^ter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party '
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this A^ecment shall not be
construed to ccnfbr any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
eflect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of coiinterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD. NH 03302-1806

603-271-8610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-738-2964

www.nh.gov/doc

AGREEMENT FOR Provide Curriculum Facilitator Services

Helen E. Hanks

Commissioner

Robin H. Maddaus

Director'

This Agreement is between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the STATE OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS ("State" or "Department" or "NHDOC"), 105 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301 and Child and Family Services of New Hampshire ("Contractor" or "CFS"1. a New Hampshire
Nonprofit Corporation with a place of business at 464 Chestnut Street, Manchester, NH 03105.

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed for the Contractor to provide two (2) Part Time CFS
personnel to facilitate the Parenting Wisely curriculum and family support services for parents that are housed under
the Departments* control and participate in the Family Connections Centers at the NH State Prison for Men (NHSP-
M), 281 North Main Street, Concord, NH 03301, the Northern NH Correctional Facility, 138 East Milan Road,
Berlin, NH 03570, and the NH Correctional Facility for Women (NHCF-W), 42 Perimeter Road, Concord, NH
03301.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Agreement and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follow:

■ EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Term of Agreement: The Term of Agreement shall become effective upon the Governor and Executive Council
approval through December 31, 2018.

2. CFS Staff Duties:

2.1. CFS's Responsibilities: Contractor shall provide two (2) PT staff as parenting curriculum facilitators at
the NH Correctional Facilities, Family Connections Centers. Duties shall include:
a. Facilitate the Parenting Wisely curriculum at each of the C2 Custody level minimum security units

for weekly Family Connection Center parenting support groups;
b. Provide support group attendance;
c. Respond to participants' parenting questions or concerns;
d. Report to the Family Connections Center staff;
e. CFS staff shall adhere to all safety and security regulations;
f. CFS shall perform all Scope of Services during regular five-day woricweek, with overtime,

weekends and holidays excluded.
2.2. NHDOC's Responsibilities:

a. The Department's Family Connections Center Adminis^ator shall oversee the CFS staff and
assign work units and duties.

b. The Department's Family Connections Center Administrator shall document CFS staff hours for
verification and reporting purposes.

Proinotiag Public Safety (brougfa lotegrity. Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Accountability
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3. Contractor Designated Liaison: The Contractor shall designate a representative to act as a liaison between the
Contractor and the Department for the duration of the Contract and notify the Department's Contract Liaison of
such individual.

4. Background Checks: Background checks will be performed by the Department or by the Slate of New
Hampshire, Department of Safety. The Contractor must contact the Administrator of the Family Connections
Center for further instructions. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to conduct a procedural
review of all criminal background checks and fingerprinting reports of all potential Contractor and or
Subcontractor employees to determine eligibility status.

5. Tool Inventory: Any tools to include equipment that the Contractor/Subcontractor needs to perform the
required services shall be inspected and inventoried before entering and leaving the facility.

6. NH Department of Corrections Contract Liaison Responsibilities: The NH Department-of Corrections'
Administrator of the Family Connections Center, or designee, shall act as liaison between the Contractor and
the NH Department of Corrections for the duration of the Contract.

7. Rules and Regulations: The Contractor agrees to comply with any applicable NH Department of Corrections
Administrative Rules, Policies, Regulations and Policy and Procedure Directives (PPD|s) to include but not
limited to PPD 5.08: Staff Personal Property Permitted In and Restricted from Prison Facilities located as a
separate link: httD:/Avww.nh.BOv/nhdQc/business/rfb bidding tools.htm.

8. Prison Rape Elimination Act fPREAl of 2003: The Contractor/Subcontractor agrees to comply with the Prison
Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003 (Federal Law 42 U.S.C.I5601 et seq.), with all applicable Federal
PREA standards, and with all State policies and standards related to PREA for preventing, detecting,
monitoring, investigating, and eradicating any form of sexual abuse within facilities/programs/offices owned,
operated, or contracted. Contractor/Subcontractor acknowledges that, in addition to self-monitoring
requirements, the State will conduct compliance monitoring of PREA standards which may require an outside
independent audit.

9. Criminal Justice Information Services fCJlS^: The essential premise of the CJIS Security Policy is to provide
appropriate controls to protect the full lifecycle of CJI, whether at rest or in trarwit. The CJIS Security Policy
provides guidance for the creation, viewing, modification, transmission, dissemination, storage, and destruction
of CJI. This Policy applies to every individual contractor, private entity, noncriminal justice agency
representative, or member of a criminal justice entity with access to, or who operate in support of, criminal
justice services and information.
Contraa shall comply with The Criminal Justice Information Services Security Policy and is located as a
separate link: htlDs://www.nh.gov/nhdoc/business/documents/ciis securitv oolicv.pdf.

10. Subcontractors: If a Subcontractor(s) is to be used for any portion of the services provided, prior approval from
the NH Department of Corrections shall be required. Notification to the Department shall include the name of
the Subcontractor, brief company profile and a description of the services/functions being subcontracted. Said
Subcontractors shall meet all requirements described in the Contract.

11. Cancellation of Contract: The Department of Corrections may cancel the Contract at any lime for breach of
contractual obligations by providing the Contractor with a written notice of such cancellation. Should the NH
Department of Corrections exercise its right to cancel the Contract for such reasons, the cancellation shall
become effective on the date as specified in the notice of cancellation sent to the Contractor.

12. Insurance: Contractor shall provide and maintain, at its expense. General Liability, Umbrella Liability, Workers
Compensation, Automobilednsurance eoverage with the State named as Additionally Insured for the life of the
Contract.

The remainder of this page is intentioDally blank.
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EXHIBIT B

METHOD OF PAYMENT AND CONTRACT PRICE

The following is a description of the contrBct price and method of payment for the provision of Curricilum Faciliator
Services for the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, Family Connections Centers.

1. Services will be billed with net 30 terms.

2. Contractor shall invoice for contractor personnel costs at the Salary rate of fifteen dollars ($15.00) an hour
and applicable hourly Benefits rate of 7.65%.

■  3. Original invoices shall be submitted by the contractor to the NH Department of Corrections, Financial
Services, P.p. Box 1806, Concord, NH 03302.

4. Upon an approved invoice, the NHDOC, Bureau of Financial Services,'may remit payment within thirty
(30) days.

5. Total estimated contract price for personnel costs shall not exceed fifteen thousand one hundred seventy
($15,170.00).

EXHiBrr c

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The following is a description of the special provisions for the provision of Curricilum Faciliator Services for the
New Hampshire Department of Corrections, Family Connections Centers.

. 1. Amend section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, by modifying 4 of the P-37, to include a final
sentence of the clause to: This contract is funded by a Residential Substance Abuse Treatment sub-grant and
funding is contingent upon continucd availability of grant funds.

2. Amend section 14, Insurance, by modifying 14.3 of the P-37, by changing the last sentence of the clause to:
Cancellation notice by the Insurer to the Certificate Holder will be delivered in accordance with the policy
provisions.

The remainder of this page is intentiooally blank.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTiriCATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certily that CHILD AKD FAMILY

SERVICES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on September 25, 1914.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Seaetary of State's ofTice have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62585

Certificate Number: 0004097320

5^

tu

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my band ai^ cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I5th day of May A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

WILLIAM CONRAD do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of ^CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NH
(Agency Name)

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 1/28/2014 :
(Date)

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Doportmant of I loolth and I lumaii Qei nicesr?^ , IJepartment of Corrections

RESOLVED: That the PRESIDENT AND

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and a|l documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO Is the duly elected
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

PRESIDENT/CEO

(Title of Contract Signatory)

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

thelJi^ay o Hnf- ̂

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this, .day of,

By,

S s s s

Officer of the Agency)

Commissio'

NH DHHS, Office of Business Opemtions
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

July 1,2005



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATE (MM/DOAVrn

6/26/2016

IHIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POlJCIES.
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERfS), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the-pollcy(ies) must be endorsed. .If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the |>ollcy, certain polidcs mayrequirc an 'endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PROOUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

Andrea Nidi in

Plf. <6031 669-3218 | f«
anicklinBcros^agency. COO

mSURERIS) AFPOROING COVERAGE NAIC8

iNSURERA :PhiladelDhia Indemnit:v Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Child C Fa&ily Services of Kew Hampshire

PC Box 448.

Manchester NH 03105

INSURER B Dranite State Health Care and Hunan

INSURER C :Travaler8 Casualty £ Surat:v Co'of . 31194

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER;18-19 All lines REVIStON NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLIOES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND.CONDmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
WSR
LTB TTTE OF INSURANCE

Uayajhiy
POUCY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

I CLA1MS4<A0E H' OCCUR
lJ.quor Liability

GEKV AGGReOATC UMTT APPUES PER:

POLICY CH I j t-OC
OTHER:

flfLvI'ViViiti UMITS

PBPIUe42135 7/1/201B 7/1/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED —
,PREMISES fE> occurrencel

MED EXP (Any cw* pwton)

PERSONAL h AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO

COMBINED SINGLE UMir
IEl>cd<Nnrt

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

X ANY AUTO
ALLOVmGD
AUTOS

1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

HIRED AUTOS

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OWNEO
AUTOS

PBPiae42139 7/1/2010 7/1/2019 BODILY INJURY (Per KcUeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per Kddeni)

Medkelpsvmentt 5,000

UMBRELLA LIA0

EXCESS UAB

D6D

OCCUR

OAIUS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 4.000.000

AGGREGATE 4,000.000

RETENTION » PBUBS35723 7/1/2010 7/1/2019

Y I P£R I I OTH-
* STATUTE ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETCnPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OPFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mendel^ in NH)
H vM. deeertbe
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

sNIA

BCflS20180000014

(3«:> MB

All Officer* included

E.L EACH ACaOENT 1.000.000

2/1/2018 2/1/2019 EL DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT S 1,000,000

Fidelity S Forgery -

Professional Liability

105912196

.PHPia84213S

4/1/2018

7/1/2018

4/1/2019

7/1/2(719

Umlt

AjpregMe

$500,000

$2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIOKS t LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Addltlontl Reewt* Sehedul*. may be MUehed )l more epae* 1* requlrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

janet.belben6doc.nh.gov

Stiate of New Hampshire '
Department of Corrections
Attui: ijanet Belben
P.O.- Box 1806 .

Concord, NH '03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED TOLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS:

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

T Franggos/JSC

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS02512014011

€> 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTTONS

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

COR 307 Items Considered Contraband. Contraband shall consist of:

a) Any substance or item whose possession in unlawful for the person or the general public
possessing it including but not limited to:

(1) narcotics
(2) controlled drugs or
(3) automatic or concealed weapons possessed by those not licensed to have them.

b) Any firearm, simulated firearm, or device designed to propel or guide a projectile against a
person, animal or target.

c) Any bullets, cartridges, projectiles or similar items designed to be projected against a person,
animal or target.

d) Any explosive device, bomb, grenade, dynamite or dynamite cap or detonating device
including primers, primer cord, explosive powder or similar items or simulations of these
items.

e) Any drug item, whether medically prescribed or not, in excess of a one day supply or in such
quantities thai a person would suffer intoxication or illness if the entire available quantity
were consumed alone or in combination with other available substances.

f) Any intoxicating beverage."
g) Sums of money or negotiable instruments in excess of $100.00.
h) Lock-picking kits or tools or instruments on picking locks, making keys or obtaining

surreptitious entry or exit
i) The following types of items in the possession of an individual who is not in a vehicle, (but

shall not be contraband if stored in a secured vehicle):
j) Knives and knife-like weapons, clubs and club-like weapons,

(1) tobacco, alcohol, drugs including prescription^drugs unless prior approval is
granted in writing by the facility Warden/designee, or Director/designee,

(2) maps of the prison vicinity or sketches or drawings or pictorial representations of
the facilities, its grounds or its vicinity,

(3) pornography of pictures of visitors or prospective visitors undressed,
(4) cell phones and radios capable of monitoring or transmitting on the police band in

the possession of other than law enforcement officials,
(5) identification documents, licenses and credentials not in the possession of the

person to whom properly issued,
(6) ropes, saws, grappling hooks, fishing line, masks, artificial beards or mustaches,

cutting wheels or string rope or line impregnated with cutting material or similar
items to facilitate escapes,

(7) balloons, condoms, false-bottomed containers or other containers which could
facilitate transfer of contraband.



COR 307.02 Contraband on prison grounds is prohibited. The possession, transport, introduction, use,
sale or storage of contraband on the prison grounds without prior approval of the commissioner of
corrections or his designee is prohibited under the provision of RSA 622:24 and RSA 622:25.

COR 307.03 Searches and Inspections Authorized.

a) Any person or property on state prison grounds shall be subject to search to discover
contraband...

Travel onto prison grounds shall constitute implied consent to search for contraband. In such

cases where implied consent exists, the visitor will be given a choice of either consenting to
the search or immediately leaving the prison grounds. Nothing in this rule however, prevents
non-consensual searches in situations where probable cause exists to believe that the visitor is
or had attempted to introduce contraband into the prison pursuant to the law of New
Hampshire concerning search, seizure and arrest.

b) -All motor vehicles parked on prison grounds shall be locked and have the keys removed.
Custodial personnel shall check to insure that vehicles are locked and shall visually inspect
the plain- view interior of the vehicles. Vehicles discovered unlocked shall be searched to
i^urc that no contraband is present. Contraband discovered during searches shall be
confiscated for evidence, as shall contraband discovered during plain-view inspections.

j- c) All persons entering the facilities to visit with residents or staff, or to perform services at the
facilities or to tour the facilities shall be subject to having their persons checked. All items .
and clothing carried into the institution shall be searched for contraband.

Name Signal' Date

Witness Name Signature Q Date



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULES OF CONDUCT FOR PERSONS PROVIDING CONTRACT SERVICES

1. Engaging in any of the following activities with persons under departmental control is strictly
prohibited:

a. Any contact, including correspondence, other than in the performance of your
services for which you have been contracted.

b. Giving or selling of anything
c. Accepting or buying anything

2. Any person providing contract services who is found to be under the influence of intoxicants or
drugs will be removed from facility grounds and barred from future entry to the NH Department
of Corrections property.

3. Possession of any item considered to be contraband as defined in the New Hampshire code of
Administrative Rules, COR 307 is a violation of the rules and the laws of the State of New

Hampshire and may result in legal action under RSA 622:24 or other statutes.

4. In the event of any emergency situation, i.e., fire, disturbance, etc., you will follow the
instructions of the escorting staff or report immediately to the closest available staff.

5. All rules, regulations and policies of the NH Department of Corrections are designed for the
safety of the staff, visitors and residents, the security of the facility and an orderly flow of
necessary movement and activities. If unsure of any policy and procedure, ask for immediate
assistance from a staff member.

6. Harassment and discrimination directed toward anyone based on sex, race, creed, color, national
origin or age are illegal under federal and state laws and will not be tolerated in the work place.
Maintenance of a discriminatory work environment is also prohibited. Everyone has a duty to

" observe the law and will be subject to removal for failing to do so.

7. During the performance of your services you arc responsible to the facility administrator, and by
your signature below, agree to abide by all the rules, regulations, policies and procedures of the
NH Department of Corrections and the State of New Hampshire.

8. In lieu of Contracted staff participating in the Corrections Academy, the Vendor through the
Commissioner or his designees will establish a training/orientation facilitated by the Vendor to
supplement this requirement and appropriate orient Vendor staff to the rules, regulations, polices
and procedures of the Departmei^f Corrections and the State of New Hampshire.

Date

Signature /) Date

Signature

' (mudOx
itness Name



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

CONFIDENTTALrTY OF INFORMATION AGREEMENT

I understand and agree that all employed by the organization/agency I represent must abide by all rules,
regulations and laws of the State of New Hampshire and the NH Department of Corrections that relate to
the confidentiality of records and all other privileged information.

I further agree that all employed by or* subcontracted through the organization I represent arc not to
discuss any confidential or privileged information with family, friends or any persons not professionally
involved with the NH Department of Corrections. If inmates or resident of the NH Department of
Corrections, or, anyone outside of the NH Department of Corrections' employ approaches any of the our
organization's employees or subcontractors and requests information, the stafE'employees of the
organization I represent will immediately contact their supervisor, notify the -NH Department of
Corrections, and file an incident report or statement report with the appropriate NH Department of
Corrections representative.

Any violation of the above may result in immediate tennination of any and all contractual obligations.

^-TaiAao WyiAtu/uriW--—
Name Signature T Date

JJskL
^e Signature^ Date ' ■



Helen £. Hanks

Commissioner

Kobin Maddaus

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806

603-271-6610 FAX; 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-785-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003 (with Final Rule August 2012) is a federal law
established to address the elimination and prevention of sexual assault and sexual harassment within
correctional systems and detention facilities. This'Act applies to all correctional facilities, including
prisons, jails, juvenile facilities and community corrections residential facilities. PREA incidents involve
the following conduct:
•  Resident-on-resident sexual assault

•  Resident-on-resident abusive sexual contact

•  Staff sexual misconduct

•  Staff sexual harassment, assault of a resident

The act aimed to curb prison rape through a "zero-tolerance" policy, as well as through research and
information gathering. The NH Department of Corrections has zero tolerance relating to the sexual
assault/rape of offenders and recognizes these offenders as crime victims. Due to this recognition and
adherence to the federal Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003, the NH Department of Corrections
extends the "zero tolerance" to the following:
•  Contractor/subcontractor misconduct

•  Contractor/subcontractor harassment, assault of a resident

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, I acknowledge that I have
been provided information on the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 Public Law 108-79—Sept. 4.
2003 and have been informed that as a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of
Corrections, sexual conduct between Contractor and/or Subcontractor and offenders is prohibited. Sexual
harassment or'sexual misconduct involving an offender can be a violation of NH RSA 632-A:2, 632-A:3
and 632-A:4, Chapter'632-A: Sexual Assault and Related Offenses, and result in criminal prosecution.

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, I understand that I shall
inform all employees of the Contractor and/or Subcontractor to adhere to all policies concerning PREA,
RSA 632-A:2, -RSA 632-A:3, RSA 632-A:4 and departmental policies including NHDQC FFD 5.19 -
PREA: NHDQC Administrative Rules. Conduct and Confidentialitv Information regarding my conduct,
reporting of incidents and treatment of those under the supervision of the NH Department of Corrections.
(Ref. RSA Chapter 632-A, NHDOC PPD 5.19 and Administrative Rules, Rules of Conduct for Persons
Providing Contract Services, Confidentiality of Information Agreement).'

Name (print):,
(Name of Contract Signatory)

Date:

Signature:
ignature of Contract Signatory)

Promoting Public Safety through Integrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and AccouDtablllty



APPENDIX H SECURITY ADDENDUM

The following pages contain the legal authority, purpose, and genesis of the Criminal Justice
Information Services Security Addendum (H2-H4); the Security Addendum itself (H5-H6);
and the Security Addendum Certification page (H7).
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION SERVICES

" SECURITY ADDENDUM

Legal Authority for and Purpose and Genesis of the
Security Addendum .

Traditionally, law enforcement and other criminal justice agencies have been
responsible for the confidentiality of their information. Accordingly, until mid-1999, the
Code of Federal Regulations Title 28, Part 20, subpart""C, and the National Crime

-  Infonnafion Center (NCTC) policy paper.approved December 6, 1982, required that the
management and 'exchange of criminal justice information be performed by a criminal
justice agency or, in certain circumstances, by a noncriminal justice agency under the

management control of a criminal justice agency.

In light of the increasing desire of governmental agencies to contract with private'
entities to perform administration of criminal justice fianctions,-thc FBI sought and obtained
approval from the United States Department of Justice (DOJ) to permit such privatization
of traditional law enforcement functions under certain controlled circumstances. In the

Federal Register of May 10, 1999, the FBI published a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking,
. announcing as follows:

1. Access , to CHRI [Criminal History Record Information] and
Related Information, Subject to Appropriate Controls, by a Private Contractor
Pursuant to a Specific Agreement with an Authorized Governmental Agency
To Perform an Administration of Criminal Justice Function (Privatization).
Section 534 of title 28 of the United States Code authorizes the Attorney
General to exchange identification, criminal identification, crime, and other
records for the official use of authorized officials of the federal government,
the states, citi.es, and penal and other institutions. This statute also provides,
however, that such exchanges are subject to cancellation if dissemination is
made outside the receiving departments or related agencies. Agencies
authorized access to CHRI traditionally have been hesitant to disclose, that
information, even in furtherance of au^orized criminal justice functions, to
anyone other than actual agency employees lest such disclosure be viewed as
unauthorized. In recent years, howeyerj governmental agencies seeking
greater efficiency and economy have" become increasingly interested in
obtaining support services for the administration of criminal justice' from the ,
private sector. With the concurrence of the FBI's Criminal Justice
Information Services (CJIS) Advisory Policy Board, the DOJ has concluded
that disclosures to private persons and entities providing support services for
criminal justice agencies may, when subject to appropriate controls, properly
be view^ as permissible disclosures for-purposes of compliance with 28
U.S.C. 534.

We are therefore proposing to revise 28 CFR 20.33(a)(7) to provide
express authority for such arrangements. The proposed authority is similar to
the authority that already exists in 28 CFR 20.21(b)(3) for" state and IoceiI
CHRI systems. Provision of CHRI under this authority would only be
permitted pursuant to a specific agreement with an authorized governmental

8/4/2014 H-2
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agency for the purpose of providing services for the administration of
criminal justice. The agreement would be required to incorporate a security
addendum approved by the Director of the FBI (acting for the Attorney
General). The security addendum would specifically authorize access to

■CHRI, limit the use.ofthe information to the specific purposes for which it is
being provided, ensure the security and confidentiality of the informkion
consistent with applicable laws and regulations, provide for sanctions, and
contain such .other provisions as the Director of the FBI (acting for the

- Attorney General) may require. The security addendum, buttressed by
ongoing audit programs of both the FBI and the sponsoring governmental
agency, will, provide an appropriate balance between the benefits of
privatization, protection of individual privacy interests, and preservation of
the security of the FBI's CHRI systems.

The FBI will develop a security addendum to be made available to
interested governmental agencies. We anticipate that the security addendum
will include physical and personnel security constraints, historically required
by NCIC security practices and other programmatic requirements, together
with personal integrity and electronic security provisions comparable to those
in NCIC User Agreements between the FBI and criminal Justice agencies,
and in existing Management Control Agreements between criminal Justice • ■
agencies and noncriminal Justice governmental entities.' The security
addendum will make clear fiiat access to CHRI will be limited to those
officers and employees of the private contractor or its subcontractor who
require the information to properly perform services for the sponsoring
governmental agency, and that the service provider may not access, modify,
use, or disseminate such infonnation for inconsistent or unauthoriKd
purposes.

Consistent with such intent, Title 28 of the Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.)
was arhended to read: - ' •

§ 20.33 Dissemination of criminal history record information.

a) Criminal history. record information contained in the Interstate
Identification Index (III) System and the Finge^irint Identification
Records System (FIRS) may be made available: .

1) To criminal Justice agencies for criminal justice purposes, which
purposes include the screening" of employees or applicants for
employment hired by criminal Ju^ce agencies.

2) To noncriminal Justice governmental agencies perforrning criminal
.  justice dispatching functions or data processing/information services

" forcriminal justice agencies; and

3) To private contractors pursuant to a specific agreement with an
agency'identified in para^aphs (a)(1) of (a)(6) of this section and for

.the purpose of providing services for the administration of criminal
justice pursuant to that agreement'^ The agreement must incorporate a
security addendum approved by the Attorney General of the United

8/4/2014 H-3
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States, which shall specifically authorize access to criminal history
record information, limit the use of the information to the purposes for

•  which it is provided," ensure the security and confidentiality of the
information consistent with these regulations, provide for sanctions,

• and contain such other provisions as the Attorney General may
require. .The power and authority of the Attorney General hereunder
shall be exercised by the FBI Director (or the Director's designee).

This Security Addendum, appended to and incorporated by reference in a
government-private sector contract entered into for such purpose, is intended to insure.that

.  the benefits of privatization are not'attained with any accompanying de^adation in the

.  security of the national system of .criminal recoriis accessed by the contracting private
party. This Security Addendum addresses' both concerns for personal integrity and
electronic security which, have been addressed in previously executed user agreements and
management control agreements. ' • .

A government agency may privatize functions traditionally performed by criminal
justice agencies (or noncriminal justice agencies acting under a management control
agreement), subject to the terms of.,this Security Addendum. If privatized, access by a
private contractor's personnel to NCIC data and other CJIS information is restricted to only
that necessary to perform the privatized tasks consistent with the government agency's
function and the focus of the contract. If privatized the contractor may not access, modify,
use'or disseminate such data in any manner not expressly authorized by the government
agency in consultation with the FBI.

8/4/2014 H-4
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION SERVICES

SECURITY ADDENDUM

The goal of this document is to augment the CJIS Security Policy to ensure adequate
security is provided for criminal justice systems while (1) under the control or management of
a private entity or (2) connectivity to FBI CJIS Systems has been provided to a private entity

■(contractor). Adequate security is defmed in Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
130 as "security commensurate with the risk and magnitude of halm resulting from the loss,
misuse, or unauthorized access to or modification..of information.'!

The intent of this Security .Addendum is to require-that the Contractor maintain a
security program consistent with federal and state laws, regulations, and standards (including •
the CJIS Security Policy in effect when the contract is executed), as well as with policies and
standards established by the Criminal Justice Information Services (CJIS) Advisory Policy
Board (APB).

This Security Addendum identifies the duties and responsibilities with respect fo the
installation and maintenance of adequate internal controls within the contractual relationship
so that the security and integrity of the FBI's information resources are not compromised.' The
security program shall include consideration- of personnel security, site security, system
security, and data security, and technical security.

The provisions of this Security Addendum apply to all personnel, systems, networks
and support facilities supporting and/or acting on behalf of the government agency.
1.1 Definitions

1.2 Contracting Government Agency (CGA) - the government agency, whether a Criminal
Justice Agency or a- Noncriminal Justice Agency, which enters into an agreement -with a
private contractor subject to this Security Addendum.
1.3 Contractor - a private business, organization or individual which has entered into an
agreement for the administration of.criminal justice with a Criminal Justice Agency or a
Noncriminal Justice Agency.

2.1 Responsibilities ofthe Contracting Government Agency.

2.2 Tfie CGA will ensure that each Contractor employee receives a copy of the Security
Addendum and the CJIS Security Policy and executes an acknowledgment of such receipt and

.the contents of the Security Addendum. The signed acknowledgments shall remain in the
possession of the CGA and available for audit purposes. The acknowledgement may be
signed by hand or via digital signature (sec glossary for defmition of digital signature).

3.1 Responsibilities ofthe Contractor.

3.2 The Contractor will maintain a security program consistent with federal and state laws,
regulations, and standards (including the CJIS Security Policy in effect when the contract is
executed and. all subsequent versions), as well as with policies and standards established by
the Criminal Justice bformation Services (CJIS) Advisory Policy Board.(APB).

4.1 Security Violations.

8/4/2014 . H-5
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4.2 The CGA must report security violations to the CJIS Systems Officer (CSO) and the
Director, FBI, along with indications of actions taken by the CGA and Contractor.

4.3 Security violations can justify termination of the appended agreement.

4.4 Upon notification, the FBI reserves the right to:

a. Investigate or decline to investigate any report of unauthorized use;

b. Suspend or terminate access and services, including telecommunications links.
The FBI will provide the CSO with timely written notice of the suspension..
Access and service will be reinstated only after satisfactory assurances have been
provided to the FBI by the CGA and Contractor. Upon termination, the
Contractor's records containing CHRI must be deleted or returned to the CGA.

5'.1 Audit "

5.2 The FBI is authorized to perform a final audit of the Contractor's systems after
termination of the Security Addendum.

6.1 Scope and Authority

6.2 This Security Addendum does not confer, grant, or authorize any rights, privileges, or
obligations on any persons other than the Contractor, CGA, CJA (where applicable), CSA,
and FBI. •

s

6.3 The following documents are incorporated by reference and made part of this
agreement; (1) the Security Addendum; (2) the NCIC 2000 Operating Manual; (3) the CJIS
Security Policy; and (4) Title 28, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 20. The parties are also
subject to applicable federal and state laws-and regulations.

6.4 The terms set forth in this document do not constitute the sole understanding by and
between the parties hereto; rather they augment the provisions of the CJIS Security Policy to
provide a minimum basis for the security of the system and contained information and it is
understood that there may be terms and conditions of the appended Agreement which impose
more stringept requirements upon the Contractor.

6.5 This Security Addendum may only be modified by the FBI, and may not be modified
by the parties to the appended Agreement without the consent of the FBI.

•6.6 All notices and correspondence shall be forwarded by First Class mail to:

Assistant Director

CriminaiJustice Information Services Division, FBI

1000 Custer Hollow Road

Clarksburg, West Virginia 26306

8/4/2014 H.6
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FEDERAL BUREAU OFIPlVESTtGATION

CRIMINAL jusuge information services

SECURITY ADDENDUM

CKwrrFrnATroN

T hereby certify that 1 am &miiiar with the cpntrats of (1) the Security Addendum,
including its l^al authority and purpose; (2) (he NCIC Qperat^ Manual; P) the CJIS
Seduntyl^oljcy; and (4)11110 28, Cbde of'Fcde^ RegulationSj Part'20, and agree to be bound
by their .provisions..

t recognize- diat criminal history record infbrniation and related data, by its very
nature, is sensitive and has potetitiai fpr great harm if misused. T adoiowledge that access to
ti^inal history record infomiation and related data is Owrefore limited to the porpO^s) for
which, a goveroment agency has entered into the contract incOiporatihg this Security
Addendum. I understand that misuse of the systein by, among other things: acoessfng It
WTlhouf authorization; accessing It by exceeding authorization; acc^ing h for an improper
ptiipose; using, disseminating or re-dlsseminating information received as a result of this
contract ftn* .a purpose other than that envisioned by the cdhtract, may subject rae to
administrative and criminal penalties. 1 understand that accessing the system for an
appropriate purpose and theh using, disseminating or re^isseminating the i.nfcrmation
received ifbr another purpose other than execution of the contract also constitutes misuse. 1
further und^stand that the occuritnce of misuse does not depend upon Whether or not 1
receive additional compensation for su(^ authorized activity. Such exposure for misuse
includes, but is not limited to, suspension or loss of emplo>inent and prosecution for state and
federal crimes.

Printed Name/Signature of Contractor Employee Date

ftWAfir-L KTmrthi

Printed Name/Signature of Contractor Representative Date

Organization and Title ofContractor Rcprcsaitative

SM/2014 H-7
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Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)
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ACCOUNTANTS ■ AUOItOIti'

121 River Front Drive

Minchester, NH 03102

(603)669-6130
,  . j . A J-. 1 i-» ^ meUnsonherth-com
Independent Auditors Report

Addition)! OiFicei:

To the Board of-Trustees N«htjj,NH

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire Andov<r ma
*  Creeniietd. MA

GUwor^h. M£

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Child and
Family Services of New Hampshire, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2017, and the related consolidated statements
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.-

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted' in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation.-
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial state'
ments based on our audit. We conducted our audit in. accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. .Those standards require that we plan
and,.perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consoli
dated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An. audit involves .performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures In the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on Ihe auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstaterhent of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to.fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order,to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not



for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies-used and the reasonableness of signifi
cant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statemerits.

We belieye that the audK evidence we have obtained is sufficient and. appropriate to
provide a basis for bur audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Child and Family Services of New
.Hampshire as of December 31, 2017, and the changes in net assets and Its cash'
flows for "thie year, then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Child, and Family Services qf New Hampshire's 2016
financial-statements, and we expressed an unrnodified opinion on those audited-
flnancial statements in our report dated March 28. 2017. In our opinion, the summa
rized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31. 2016 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other fi/Iatters

Other Information

Ouraudit was conducted for the purpose'of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is npt a required part of the
-consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of rnanage-
ment and was derived" from and. relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consoli
dated financial -statements and certain additional procedures, including -cornpaFing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting, and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements-themselves, and'other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America: In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated'
financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In.accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report
dated March 27,. 2018 on our consideration of Child and Family Services of-New
Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and on .our tests of its compli
ance with certain provisions of laws! regulations, contracts, and.grant agreerrients
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on -compliance. That report'is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards In considering Child and Family Services of
New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 27. 2018
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CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NEW MaMPSHIRE

ConsoUdaled Slatehtenl of FuncUonal Expenses
For ihe Veer Ended December 31,-2017

(wllh comparvUve totals tor ihe year ended December 31, 2016)

Program Management "2017 2016
Services and General FundraWno" Total Total

Personnel et^ense:
Salaries and wages i  5,642,106 S  621,492 i 265,130 S  6,926,730 S  -6,669.191
Employee twnefits 680,003 75,328 25,925 ' 761,346 624,246.
Payroll related costs' 646,231 73,785 31,004 ■ 751,020 691,003
Mileage reimbursement 416,205 2,363 -959 421,527 415,527
Contracted services 465.7^ 44.336 16.950 547 074 537.359

6.&37,326Subtotal personnel eiqtense 6,072,423 1,017,306 339,966 9.429.697

Accounting 30,330 . 30.330 28,650
Assistance to indwfuals 744,299 . 744,299 661,366
CommXinlcalions 145,664 3,950 5,312 154,946 149,797
Conferences, conventions, meetings 29,650 12,376 3,493 45.719 62,030
Depreciation 246,160 66,590 . 316,750 322,236
In.kind contributions 135,609 23,594 . 159,403 226.102
Insurance 64,563 7,550 2,545 74,678 75,539
Interest 229,449 70,600 . 300,049 291.014
Legal' - . 27,320 . 27,320 54,911
Membership dues 16,203 20,019 2,404 '' 40;626 29,614
Miscetianeous 30,645 10,129 2,291 43,065 .142,533
Occupancy 393,419 24,954 ■ 8,195 426;S66 397.560
Printing and put)Scations 33,999 4,097 30,005 66,101 63,600
Rental and equipment maintenance 66,533 21,602 1,334 109.469 103,322
Supptie's 62,604 7,679 2;303 92,966 73,795
Travel 56 964 179 142 59,265 ST.062

. Total Functional Expenses $• 10.374,824 S  1.350.475 • S 397.992 J 12,123,291 ( 11.690,661

The sccompsnying notes are an Integral pait of these financial stalemenls.



CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF. NEW HAMPSHIRE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

(with comparative totals for the year ended Decerriber 31. 2016)

2017 2016

Cash Flews,From Operating Activities:
Change In net assets $  2,360,055- $  216,322

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 316,750 322,236

Restricted contributions (265,005) -■ (12,066)
Realized (gain) loss on Investments 60,566 (363.382)
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (2.049,'713) . (546,408)
Change in teneficial interest in tnjst (131,927) 119

Change in interest rate swap (106.042) (138,439)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities;

Accounts receivable (281,333) 58,729 ■
Prepaid expenses (40,494) (1,332)
Contributions receivat)le (40,000)
Accounts payable (31,103) (57.023)
Accnjed expenses (149.642) 259,691
Other liabSities 47.675

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities (270.213) (301.553)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
. Purchases of investments (15,732,031) (144,705)
Proceeds from sale of investments . 15,991,440 684,043
Purchase of fixed assets (261.461) (118,812)

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities (2.052) 420,526

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Restricted contributions 265.005 12,066
Payment of long term debt (135.005) (125,000)

Net Cash Prpvided (Used) By Financing Activities 130,000 (112,934)

' Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (142,265) 6,039

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 1,032,696 1,026,657

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $  890.431 $  1.032.696

■SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Interest Pafd $  300,049 .$ 291,01-4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CHILD ANDFATWiLY SERViCES OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

1. Description of Organization

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire (the Organization) is a nonprofit
organization, founded in 1850, that currently aids more than 20,000 individu
als. statewide, through an array of social services.

These services span the life cycle from prenatal to seniors, and can be grouped
into four basic categories:

1. Early Childhood ~ Family Support & Education Services
Over 4,500 parents received education and support to Improve parenting,
strengthen families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy
development of children. Over 500 young children starting life at a disad
vantage received critical services to ensure a good beginning and to opti
mize their chance for life-long success. Some of the programs focused on
early childhood include:

Early Support and Services ~ Early Support and Services provides
family-centered support and therapies to infants and toddlers who
have developmental disabilities, delays-or are at risk of developmental
delays. Services wori< to optimize babies' cognitive, physical, emo
tional and social development, and chance for success*. Services are
provided in the child's natural environment (home, day care, play-'
ground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services - A number of different prevention programs
are offered in the home during those critical early years of a child's

*  life. A spectrum of services includes support Ito new mothers and
those struggling to pafenl; services for children with chronic health
conditions; prenatal services, for babies being born at a disadvantage
mto low-income families; and programs to ericpurage positive early
parent/child relationships and promote optimal early, childhood devel
opment. Services are provided by nurses, social workers, develop
mental specialists, occupational therapists, health educators, and home-
visitors.

Adoption - A licensed child-placing agency, the Organization has been
forming families through adoption since 1914. The Organization's
adoption professionals provide home studies'and adoption services
for families looking to adopt and provide counselling and support to
birth-parents who are considering the adoption option.'



2. Children, Youth, and Family - Intervention and Treatment Programs .
The Organization contracts with the §tate of New Hampshire, (he federal
government, and insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services
for children, adolescent^ and young adults. Programs are delivered in the
horhe, schools, or community, and include mental health counseling and
substance abuse treatment, as well as a complex system of family stabi
lization and presen/ation programs, child protection services, and services
for at-risk youth- Some of the programs include: •

Foster, care - The Organization works with the State of New Hamp
shire in placing children who have been' rescued from dangerous home
environments, into safe, stable, loving homes. The Organization recruits
and supports foster, families and works to facilitate permanency for
each child.

Home Based Service^.- The. Organization has a number of programs
provided in the family home that are desighed"t6 help families who are
struggling through daily life - where children are at risk. Services work
to thwart dprhestic violence, rebuild families, and to improve family
functioning. The Organization empowers families with the skills and
resources they need to provide for their children and become self-
sufficient.

3. .Runavyay and-Homeiess Youth Services "
The Organization is the sole provider of services for runaway, and home
less youth in Manchester and the Seacoast. A full spectrum of services
features outreach to at-risk youth that includes survival aid on the streets
and basic needs fulfillment at the drop-in center, as well as crisis interven
tion, educational and vocational advocacy, housing, and case manage
ment. The Organization also provides behavioral health and substance
use counseling where needed. The Organization works with school systenris,
police, and other agencies in addressing the needs of New Hampshire's
homeless youth.

4. Senior Care and Independent Living
The Organization helps seniors and individuals with chronic Jllpess or disa
bility to live at home safely and with dignity, and to maintain quality of Iffe.
Under the title of Home Care, services are delivered fey homemakers, com
panions, personal care service providers, and LNAs. The Organization's
caregive.rs go to client homes to help with everything from cooking ami'
cleaning, to personal hygiene, medication reminders, mobility, travel -to

■ appointments, paying bills, help with daily tasks, and communication with
farnily members.



Additionally, the Organization runs two unique programs:

Camp Spaulding - Since 1921. Camp Spaulding has helped campers
from all types of backgrounds enjoy thq benefits of a traditional, resident
camp experience. In 2015, the Organization formed a partnership with the
YMCA of Greater Nashua whereby the Organization will own the camp
and the YMCA will handle daily operations and summer programming.
This collaboration will combine a 96 year camp history, an exceptional
facility, strong community-support, and.the expertise of two premier New
Hampshire nonprofit organizations.

The New Hampshire Children's Lobby - Established in 1971, the New
Hampshire Children's Lobby, is the advocacy wing of Child and Family
Services. The program's .mission is to improve the lives of children and
families through legislative, judicial, and public policy initiatives. This com
bination of advocacy and direct service practice uniquely positions the
Organization to serve the best interest of New Hampshire children.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The Orgarlization prepares its consolidated financial statements in accocd-.
ance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles promulgated in the
United States of ̂ erica (GAAP) for nonprofit organizations. The significant
accounting and reporting polides used by the Organization are described
subsequently to enhance the usefulness and understandability of the consoli
dated financial statenients.

Net Assets

The consolidated financial statements- report ne.t asset? and changies in net
assets in three -classes that ar;e based upon the existence or absence of
restrictions on use that are placed by its donors, as follows:

Unrestrkted_Net Assets

Unrestricted n^t assets are resources available tc support operations.
The only limits on the use of unrestricted net assets are the broad limits'
resulting from the nature of-the Organization, the environment in which it •
operates, the-purposes specified in its organizing documents and Its
application for tax-exempt status; and any limits resulting from contractual
agreements with creditors and othefs that are entered, into in the course
of-its operations..

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are resources that are restricted by
donors for use for a particular purpose or in a particular future period. The
Organization'-s unspent contributions are classified in this net asset dass if
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the donor limited their use, as are the unspent-apprepiation of its donor-
restricted endowment funds.

When a donor's restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in
the manner specified by the donor or by the passage of time, the expira
tion of the restriction is reported in the consolidated financial statements
by reclassifying the net assets from temporarily restricted to unrestricted
net assets.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets are resources whose use by the Organ
ization is limited by donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by being
used in accordance with a donor's restriction nor by the passage of time.
The portion of the Organization's donor-restricted funds that must be main
tained in perpetuity is classified in this net asset class,'as is the Organiza
tion's beneficial interest in perpetual charitable trusts. Unless restricted by
the donor, income earned on permanently restricted net assets is expend
able to support operations, subject to certain restrictions.

All revenues and net gains are reported as increases in unrestricted net
assets in the Statement of Activities unless the use of the related resources is

subject to temporary or permanent donor restrictions. All expenses and net
losses, other than losses on endowment investments, are reported as
decreases in unrestricted net assets. Net'losses on endowment investments

feduce terpporarily restricted net- assets to the extent that temporarily
restricted net gains from prior years are unspent and classified there;!
remaining losses are classified as decreases in unrestricted net assets. If an
endowment fund lias no "net gains from prior years, such as when a fund is
newly established, net losses are classified as decreases in unrestricted net
assets.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization include the accounts
of Child and Family Services of New Hampshire and Child and Family Realty
Corporation, a commonly controlled organization. All inter-organization trans
actions have been eliminated.

Comparative Hnandal Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative iriformation in total, but not. by net asset class. Su.ch information
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
Accounting .Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with.the
audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016, from
which the summarized information was derived.

11



Cash EquivaJents

Cash equivalents are short term, interest bearing, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, unless the investments are
held for meeting donor restrictions.,Temporarily restricted cash inveslrnents
held within investment portfolios are excluded from cash equivalents.

Investments

The Organization maintains pooled Investment accOOnts for its restricted
.endowments. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated tb the
individual endowments based on the relationship of the market value of each
endowment to the total market value of the pooled investment accounts, as
adjusted for additions to or'deductions from those accounts.

Accounts Receivable and Revenue

Accounts receivable is recognized when qualifying costs are incurred for
.cost reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided
for performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to .
independent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in
the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grants or reductions
of future grant awards. Based on prior experience, the Organization's man
agement believes that costs ultimately disallowed, If any, would not materially
affect the financial position of the Orgbnizatiorv.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for .receivables is reviewed
on an ongoing basis by the Organization's m'anagerrient and adjusted as
required through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad debt expense). In
determining the amount recjuired in the allowance account..management has
taken into account a variety of factors.

Beneficial Interest

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The tienefi-
cial interest in .the trust is reported at its fair value; which is estimated as the
fair value of the underlying trust assets. Distributions of Income frorh the trust
assets are restricted to use and are reported as increases in temporarily
restricted net assets until expended in accordance with restrict.ions. The value
of the t)eneficial interest in the trust is adjusted annually for the change in its

■ estimated fair value. Those changes in value are reported as increases in
permanently restricted net assets because the trust assets will never be
distributed to the Organization. .
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment Is reported at cost, if purchased, and at fair value
at the date of donation, if.donated. Any such donations are reported as unre*
■stricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset for a spe
cific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use, and
contributions of cash that-must be used to* acquire property and equipment,
are reported as'restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how
long those donated assets must be rndintained, the Organization reports expi
rations of donor restrictions over the useful life of the asset. The Organization
reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that
time. " .

Property and equipment is capitalized if rt has a cost of $1,000 or more and a-
useful life when acquired of more than one year. Repairs and maintenance
that do not significantly increase the useful life of the asset are expensed as
incurred. Depreciation is computed.using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 - 50 years
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 5- 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Software 5 "years

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment when a significant change
in the asset's use or. another indicator of possible impairment is present. No
impairment losses were recognized in the consolidated financial statements in
the current period.

interest-Rate Swap

An interest-rate swap is utilized to mitigate, interest-rate risk on bonds payable
(Note 9). The related liability -is reported at fair value in the Statement of
Financial Position, and unrealized gains or losses are included in the State
ment of Activities.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are'recognized when
received. All contributions are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
unless use of the contributed assets is specifTcally restricted by the donor.
Amounts received' that are restricted by the donor to use in future periods or
for specific purposes are reported as increases in either temporarily restricted
or permanently restricted net assets, consistent with the nature of the.
restriction. Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have an

•implied restriction to be.used in the year the payment is.due and. therefore,
are reported as temporarily restricted until the payment is due unless the
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contribution is clearly intended to support activities of the current fiscal year or
is received with permanent restrictions. Conditional promises, such as match
ing grants, are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is. untii.all
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Gifts-in-Kind Contributions

The .Organization periodically receives contributions in- a form other than cash.
Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an asset at its esti
mated fair value at the date of.grft, provided that the value of the asset and its
estimated useful .life meets the Organization's capitalization policy. Donated
use of'facilities is. reported as contributions and as expenses at the estimated
fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the use of the
■space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one year, the con
tribution" is reported as a contribution and an.unconditional promise fo give at
the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term of use. Donated
supplies .are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and as expenses
when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial'
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated sfgnificant amounts of
time and services to the Organization's program operations and in its fund-
raising campaigns. However, the majority.of the contributed services do not
meet the criteria for recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed
services only if (a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or
(b) the services would have been purchased if not provided by contribution,
require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing those
skills.

Funct'onal Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the.. Organization's programs and other activities is
summarized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities
and Consolidated-Statement of Functional Expenses. Expenses-that can be
identified with a specific program or support service are charged directly to
that program or support service. CosU common to multiple, functions have
been allocated among the various functions benefited.

Managemetit and general expenses include those costs >that are not directly
identifiable with any specific program, but which provide for the overall
support and direction of the Organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in
contributions received in future years.

14
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Use of£stimate$

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires manage
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at
the date of the consolidated financial statements. On an ongoing basis, the
Organization's management evaluates the estimates and assumptions based
upon historical experience and various other factors and circumstances. The
Organization's management believes that the estimates and assumptions are
reasonable in the circumstances; however, the actual results could differ from
.those estimates.

Tax Status

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire is exempt from federal Income,
tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization
described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as
an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a)
and qualifies for deductible contributions.

Child and Family Realty Corporation Is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization described in
Section 501 (c)(25).

The Organization, follows FASB ASC 740-10. Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty In.income taxes
and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for
financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a
material impad on the Organization's consolidated financial statements.

The Organization's Federal. Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From
Income Tax) are subject to examination by the IRS. generally for three years
after filing.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration" risk is managed by placing cash accounts with financial
institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may
exceed insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of
these accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts and contributions receiv
able is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates. Invest-

. ments are made by diversified investment managers whose performance is
monitored by the Board of Trustees. Although the'fair values of Investments
are subject to fluctuation on a'year-to-year basis, the Investment Committee
believes that,the investment policies and guidelines are prudent for the long-
term welfare of the Organization.
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Fair Value Measurements

The Organization reports Its fair value measures using a three-level hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy, estab- •
lished by Generally. Accepted Accounting Principles, requires that entities
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The three.levels of inputs used to measure
fair value are as follows:

Level 1. Quoted prices tor identjcal assets or liabilities in active markets to
which the Organization has access at the measurement date.

• Level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included in LeveJ..1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2.
inputs include:

— quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

— quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are
not active;

— observable inputs other than quoted prices for the asset or liabil
ity (for example, Interest rates and yield curves); and

— inputs derived principally from, or corrobprated by, observable
market data by correlation or by other means.

•  Level 3. Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable
inputs should be used to measure the fair value to the extent that
otDservable inputs are not available.-

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
bisgause they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, Level i inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities
that the'Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example. -
unconditional promises to give and'in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's consolidated
financial statements are:

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment
assets and unconditional promises to give.

• Recurring measurement of endowment investments (Note 5) - Level t.

• Recuming measurement of beneficial interests in trusts (Note 6) -•
Level 3.

®. Recurring measurement of line of credit (Note 8) - Level 2.
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«  Recurring measurement of bonds payable and interest rate swap
(Note 9) - Level 2.

« Recurring- measurement of deferred loans (Nole 10) - Level 2.

3. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31:

2017 2016

Receivable Ailowance. Net . Receivable Allowance • Net

Grants receivable $ 620.244 $ (3,900)$ 624,344 $ 497.717 $ (4.700) $ 493.017
Fees for .sen/ice 260,404 260.404' 110,398 110.398

$  888.648 $ (3.9001$ 8^.748. $ ̂ .115 $ (4,7X] $ 603.415

4. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at year end relate primarily to prepaid Insurance and
contracts.

5. Investments

Investments at fair value consist of mutual funds totaling $17,630,209 and
$15,900,471 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectiv^y.'

Under the terms of the Organization's line of credit agreement (Note 8), the
Orgariization has agreed ndt to pledge these investments as security on any
other debt.

For the'years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, expenses relating to
investment revenues, including management fees, amounted to $27,771 and
$66,376, respectively, and have been netted against investment revenues in
the accompanying Statements of Activities.

The Organization's policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of-
•  investment income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends, or
appreciation reinvested'. The-spending policy approved by the Board of Trus
tees for 2017 Is 4.75% of the average fair market value of all investments
over .the previous twelve quarters.

As discussed in Note 2 to these consolidated-financial statements,.the Org'an-
.  ization is required to report its fair value measurements in one of three levels,
which are based on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the
Organization's valuation techniques; Level 1, the most observable level of •
Inputs, is for investments measured at quoted prices in active markets for
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identical investments as of the December 31, 2017. Level 2 is for investments
measured using inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices
for the identical asset in inactive marl^ets, and for investments measured at

net asset value that can be redeemed in the near term. Level 3 is for invest

ments measured using inputs that are unobservable, arid is used in situations
for which there is little, if any. market activity for the investment.

The Organization uses the following ways to determine the fair value of Its
investments:

Mutual funds: Determined by the published value per unit at the end of
the last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at
that date.

6. Beneficial Interest Held In Trust

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of three funds that are administered •
by the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF.). Income from the funds

'is to provide assistance to children attending Camp Spaulding and for capital
improvements to the ca.mp. The. fund resolution provides that distributions
from the funds can be made at the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016,"the fair market value of the funds, v^hich
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received,
was $868,099 and $797,544, respectively. The Organization received $32,744
and $32,369 from the funds in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in thre6 charitable remainder
trusts. The assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the
trusts. The fair value of these beneficial interests is determined by applying
the Organization's percentage interest to the f^ir value of the trust assets as
reported by the trustee.

Percentage
Trust Interest 2017 2016-

Greenleaf 100% $-40i;i67 $ 375,595
■  . Spaulding 100% 336.123 315,182

Cogswell. ■ 50% 262,517 247,658

Total $ 999.807 $ 938,435

Ih 2017 and 2016, income distributed by these trusts was $61,372 and
$42,064, respectivety: Beneficial interest in funds held by''others is reported
at its fair value, which is estimated as the'-present value of expected future
cash inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed in Note 2, the valuation tech
nique used by (he Organization is a Level 3 measure because there are no.
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observable market transactions. Changes in the fair value of assets measured
at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs are
comprised of the following: •

Balance at-December 31, 2015 $ 1,736,098

Change in value of beneficial interest (119)

Balance at December 31, 2016. 1,735,979
Change in value of beneficial, interest 131.927

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 1.867.906

7. Property. Equipment and Depreciation

A summary oil the major components of property and equipment is presented
below:

2017 2016

Land and land improvements $  1,114,949 $  1,114,949

Buildings and Improvements ^ 8,072,313 7,938,789

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 796,686 699,160
Vehicles 101,585 68.391

Software 166.592 166,592

Construction in progress 17,217

Subtotal 10,269,342 10,007,881

Less: accumulated depreciation (4,002.980) (3,686,230)

Total $  6,266.362 $  6,321,651

8. .. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,0(30 revolving line of credit agreement with a
bank. The line of credit expired on June 30. 2017 and was extended through
June 30; 2018.-The line Is secured by a first lien, on accounts receivable,
double negative pledge on all investments of the borrower, and carries a
variable rate of interest at the Wall Street Journal prime rate (4.50%- at
December 31, 2017), adjusted daily. At December 31,. 2017, the balance on
this line of credit was $0.

9. Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority,
(the "Authority") sold'$5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds,. Child'and Family
Services Issue, Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds.of the bonds to the
Organization .to refund its Series -1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain
improvements to the Organization's facilities, the Series 2007 Bonds were
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issued with a variable Interest rate' determined on a weekly basis. Prior to
issuing the Bonds, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agree
ment (the "Swap Agreement") with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counterparty")
for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated with the
Series 2007 Bonds: Th'e interest rate swap agreement requires the Organiza
tion to pay the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in exchange, the Counter
party will pay the Organization a variable rate on the notional amount based
on the 67% of one month LIBGR. Counterparty payments to the Organization
were intended to offset Organization payments of variable rate interest to
bond holders. Counterparty credit worthiness and market variability can impact
the variable rates received and paid by the Organization," with the potential of
increasing Organization interest payments. A's a result, the cost of the interest
rate swap for 2017 and 2016 is added "to interest expense in the Consolidated
Statement of Functional Expenses. The bonds mature",in 2038 and can be
repaid at any time.

The Organizatiori is required to include the fair value of the swap -in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any,
in the fair value of the swap in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For
example, during the bond's 30-year holding period, the annually calculated
value of the swap will be reported as an asset if interest rates increase above
those in effect on .the date of the swap was entered into (arid as an unrealized
gain in-the Consolidated Statement of Activities), which will generally be indic
ative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap is below
market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the swap. The
swap will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the Consoli
dated Statement of Activities) if interest rates decrease below those in effect
on the date the swap was entered into, which will generally be.indicative that
the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on the swap is above market-
expectations of rates during the remaining term of the swap. The annual
accounfing adjustments of value changes in the swap transaction are non-
cash recognition requirements, the net effect of which will be zero at the end
of the bond's 30-year term. At December 31, 2017 and 2016,. ".theOrgani-
zation recorded the swap liability position of $1,062,342 and $1,168,384,
respectively. During. 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the credit rating
of the Counterparty to the letter of credit reimbursement agreement, which
triggered a mandatory tender of the Series 2007 Bonds in whoje and a tem
porary conversion of one-hundred percent of the principal amount to a bank
purchase mode under the terms of.said letter of credit reimbursement agree-
rr«nt; Since it became evident that the credit markets would not soon return

to normalcy, the Organization elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from
a weekly rate mode to a bank purchase mode. This new bank purchase mode
created a rate period in which the Series 2007 Bonds bear interest at the tax
adjusted bank purchase rate of 68% of the sum of the adjusted period LIBOR
(30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The bank* purchase mode commenced on
July 31,-.2009 and expire.d on July 31, 2014; however, the expiration date was
extended by the Counterparty and the Organization had the option to convert
back to the weekly rate mode. The Series 2007 Bond documents require the
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Organization to comply with certain financial covenants. As" of De^mber 31.
2017,-the Organization was in compliance with these.covenants.

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
bonds payable;

Year Amount

2018 $ 140,000

201 a. "140,
2020

2021

2022

Thereafter 3,595,000

$ 4,345.000 ■

10, Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated
June 7, 200$. The face amount of the note is $550.000,'does not require the
payment of interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate
located In Dover, New Hampshire.

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated
May 22. 2007. The face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the
payment of Interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate
located in Manchester, New Hampshire.

1 i. Endowment Funds -

The Organization's endowment consists of various individual funds estab
lished for a variety of purposes. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted
funds and funds designated .by the Board of trustees to function as endow
ments. As required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, net assets
associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of

. Trustees .to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Board-designated Investments

As of Decerfiber 31, 2017, the Board of Trustees had designated $15,309,644
of unrestricted net assets as a general endowment fund to support the
mission of the Organization! Since that amount resulted frorn an. internal
designation and is not donor-restricted, it is'classified and reported as unre
stricted net assets.
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Donor-designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preserva
tion of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-
restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.
As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as pefmanently
restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent
endowrhent, (b) the originat value of subsequent gifts to the perrhane.nt
endowment and '(c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in

accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the "
time the accumulation is added to the fund..The remaining poHion of the
donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until
those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In
accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate (lonor-restricted endow
ment funds: (1)the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the
purposes of Ihe donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic
conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected
total retum from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other
resources of the Organization, and (7) the Organization's investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

■ From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-

restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA
requires the Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration, in accord
ance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, deticiencies of "this nature
are required to be restored -.from either temporarily restricted or unrestricted
net assets, depending on donor .stipulations. These deficiencies result from
unfavorable market fluctuations that occur causing the original donor restricted
contribution, plus accumulated investment' earnings that, in accordance with
donor stipulations, are required to be added to the original contribution, to fall
below the accumulated balances. DOnor stipulations for permanently restricted-
income restricted funds require the reclassiflcation of realized and unrealized
earnings to temporarily restricted net assets. Based on donor stipulations,
there are no temporarily or permanently restricted funds in deficit.

investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a
total return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and-enhance

• the principal of the fund and, at the same time, provide a dependable source
of support for current operations arid programs. The withdrawal from the fund
in support of current operations is expected to femain'a constant percentage
of the total fund, adjusted for new gifts to the fund.
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In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, risasonable diversifica
tion is sought where possible". Experience has shown financial markets and
.inflation rates are cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achieved
through investment styles. Asset allocation parameters have been developed
for various funds within the structure, based on investment objectives, liquidity
needs, and time horizon for intended use.

Measurement of Investment performance against policy objectives will be
computed on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction
costs. Total return is defined as dividend or interest income plus realized and
unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation at fair market value.

Spending Policy

The Organization's spending policy Is 4.75% of the average total endowment
v^lue over, the trailing 12quarters with a 1% contingency margin. This, includes
interest and dividends paid out to the Organization. •

The net asset composition of endowment investments as of December 31,
2017 is as follows:

Oonor-restrided endowment hinds

Board-designated endowment funds

Total funds

Unrestricted

$
15,309,844

i 15,309,844

Temporarily
Restricted

$ 657,676

S 657,676

Permanently
Restricted

Total Net

Endowment

Assets

$ 1,662,689 $ 2,320,365
15,309,844

$ 1,662,689 S 17,630.209

Changes in endowment net assets as of December 31, 2017 are as fellows:

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

Endowment net assets, beginning of ,yeai $ 14.027,737 $ 475,050 $
Contributtons 58,257
WttfKlrawals (1,020,000)-
Investment income 2,168.644 257,832.
Net assets released from restriction 75,206 (75,206)

Endowment net assets, end of year $ 15.309,844 % 657,676 $.

Permanently
Restricted

1.397.684

265,005

Total Net

Endowm'ent

Assets

15.900.471
323,262

(1,020,000)
2,426,476

1,662,689 • % 17,630,209
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12. TemporanDv Restricted Net Assets"

Temporarily restricted net assets at December 31 were comprised of the
following:

2017 2016.

Program restrictions:
Camp $  134.161 $  96,925

Child abuse prevention 322,306 .194,372

Early intervention 2,000 7,000

Family counseling 20,660 44,588

■ Homecare 50,000 40,000

Human trafficking 6,000

Teen and.youth ,  131,895. 133,350

Subtotal' 667,222 516.235

Capital campaign restrictions:
Camp Pavillion 257,431 265.680

Camp Spaulding 249,224 299,000

Renovated teen center. 215,463 232,037

Union Street 204,189 210,994

Subtotal 926,307 1,007,711

Cumulative appreciation on permanently
restricted net assets 657,676 475;050

Total $ 2,251,205 $ 1,998,996

13. Net Assets Released from Restriction

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
•  restricted purpose, or by the passage of time.

14. Trarisactions with Related Parties

The Organization procures a portion of (heir legal services from a local law
firm that employs an attorney who also serves on the Organization's Board of
Directors. The attorney board member does not personally perform the legal
services. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the total legal e^ense
from related parties was $20,663.

24



16. Defmed Contribution Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a
defined contribution plan that all eligible employees may immediately, make
elective participant contributions to upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution
is permitted by employees up to limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code
and other limitations specified in the Plan. There were .no contributions made
to the plan by the OrganizaUon for the years ended December 31. 2017 and
2016, respectively.

16. Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space under the terms qf- non-cancellable
lease agreements that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2018.
The Organization also rents additional facilities on a month to month basis.'
Rent expense under these agreements totaled $141,787 and $129,338 for
the years ended December 31. 2017 and 2016. respectively.

17. Concentrations of Risk

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies o'f the
State of New Hampshire. As such, the Organization's ability to generate
resources via grants is dependent upon the- economic health of that area
and of the State of New Hampshire. An economic downturn could cause a
decrease in grants that coincides with an increase in demand for the Organ
ization's services.

The Organization invests in various investment securities, investment securi
ties are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market, .and credit
risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it
is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment secu
rities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect
the amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position;

18. Subsequent Events

.Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 27, 2018, which is
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Events occuming after that date have not been evaluated to 'determine
whether a change in the consiolidated financial stateriients would be required.
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Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Borj a Alvarez de
Toledo

CEO $180,000 0 0

Colleen Ives COO $105,000 0 0

Tony Cheek CFO $100,339 0 0



Borja Alvarez de Toledo, M.Ed.

464 Chestnut street, Manchester, NH 03105/603-518.-^00
alvarezdet6ledob@cfsnh.org

Professional Profile

0  A seasoned leader with more than 15 years of senior ievel non-prpfit management ̂perience. .
«  Strong business acumen v/ith emphasis on.developing processes to ensure the aiignmentof

strategy, operations, and outcomes with a strength based approach to leadership development
•  Collaborative leader using systemic and strategic frameworlc In program development, supervision

and conflict resolution. •

Professional Experience

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
Manchester, NH • ■ . December2013-Present

~ President and CEO

•  . Responsible for program planning and development, insuring that CPS meets the community needs.
•  Advance the public profile of CF-S by developing innovative approaches and building productive

relationships with government, regional and national constituendes.
•  Acts as advisor to the Board of Directors and maintains relationships with the regional Boards
• • Responsible for all aspects of financial planning, sustainability and" oversight of CPS', assets
•  .Work with Development staff and Board of Directors to design and implement ̂1 fundraising
•  activities, including cultivation and solicitation of key individuals, foundations and corporations

Riverside Community Care . •
Dedham, MA ■ .2009-2013

Division Director, Child and Family Services
•  Responsible for strategic vision, planning arid implementation of the programmatic, operational and

financial sustainability of a $17M division with more than 300 employees.
•  In partnership with The Guidance Center, inc.'s board of directors, played leadership role in

successfully merging with Riverside Corfimunlfy Care, through a process that irivolved strategic
planning, analysis and selection of.a viable partner.

•  Provide supervlsion to managers using a strength based approach and a'collaborative coaching
model to leadership development

The Guidance Center, Inc.
Cambridge, MA • • 1990-2009

.. C/7/ef Operaf/ng Ofl7ce/* 2007-2009
• • Hired initiaiiy as. Director of an intensive home-based family program and through successive

promotions became responsible for ail operations in the organization.
•  Responsible, for sup^ision of Division Directors, strategic planning and development of new

■ inltiatrves.

-  • Developed strategic relationships with state and,local funders, and partnered wth community
■  agencies to support the healthy growth of children and families.

Private Practice In Psychotherapy and Clinical Consultation
Madrid, Spain ' ' .1992-1998
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.Madnd, Spain 1991 -1998

'■Adjunct Acuity
o  Taught graduate level courses in.Family and Couples Therapy program
o  Practicum program supervisor; Supervised first year.Master's Degree students through live • •

supervision in the treatment of multi-problem families.

Centro Medico-Psicopedagoglco
Madrid, Spain - 1994 -1997

-Clinical Coordinator/Director of Training.
•  Memberof a multi-disciplinary team that provided assessment and treatment to families victims of

\  . terrorism and had developed Post Traumatic Stress Disorder. - ■

ITAD (institute for Alcohol and Drug Treatment), t ' •
Madrid, Spain 1991- 1994'

- Senior Drug and Alcohol Counselor, Drug and Alcohol Program
»  Provided evaluation and treatment for chemically dependent adults and their families.
- Senior Family Therapist, Couples and Family Therapy Program
• Worked as a family therapist in the evaluation and treatment of adolescents and families.

Charfes.Rlver Health Management
Boston, MA ' ' . 1989- 1991

~ Senior Family Therapist, Home-Based Family Treafmenf Program. '

Education

•  Graduate Certificate of Business •
Universitypf f\/lassachusetts, Lowell, 2000.
Master's begree'in Education' . ...
Counseling Psychology Program. Boston University, 1989.
B.A. in Clinical Psychology

.  Unlversidad Pontificia de Comillas, Madrid, Spain. 1966

Publications

2009 Ayers,S & Alvarez de Toledo, B. Community Based Mental Health with Children and Families. In A
R. Roberts (Ed.) ,SodaJ Worker's Desk Reference (2"^ ed.),New York: Oxford University Press, 2009

2006 Topical Discussion: Advancing Community-Based Clinical Practice and Research: Learning in the
Field. Presented at the 19^ Annual Research Conference: A Systern'of Care for Children's Mental
Health: Expanding the Research Base, February 2006, Tampa, FL

2001 Lyman, D.R.; Siegel, R.; Alvarez de Toledo, B.; Ayers, S.; Mikula, J. How to be little and still think
big: Creating a grassroots, evidence based system of care. Symposium presehted at the 14'*'
Annual Research Conference In Children's Mental Health, Research and Training Center for .
Children's Mental Health, February 2001, Tampa, FL , . . .

2006 Lyman,"D.R., B'. Avarez de Toledo, The Ecology of intensive community based intervention. -in
Lightbumi A., P. Sessions. Handbook of Community Bas^ Clinical Practice. Oxford.Uni^rsity
Press, 2(W6, England.

2001 Lyman, D.R., B.Avarezde Toledo (2001) Risk factors and treatment outcomes in a strategic
intensive family program- In Newman, .C, 0. Liberton, K1 Kutash and R. Friedman, (Eds.) ASystem
of Care for Chfldren's Mental Health.: Expanding the Research Base (2002), pp. 55-58. Research-
and Training Center for Children's Mental Heaitfi, University of South Florida, Tah1pa,,FL

1994-98 Research papers and professional presentations In peer reviewed joumals In Spain

.Languages

.  . Fluent in Spanish. French and Italian.



C.QLLEEN-IVI. Jy.E,S_

464 Chestnut St.

Manchester, NH 03105/603-S18-4362
ivesc@cfsnh.ot^'

CHIEF bPERATING OFFICER

Proactive executive with a formidable record of driving systemic change and business expansion. Nimble
administrator with strategic planning, busjn^s process improvement, cost controls and performance management
experience. ColiaboraUve leader with Inspirational and decisive management style who achieves exceptional,
rather than-expected, results. Catalyst for open communications towards a climate of learning to benefit company
and individuals." , . • . ' ' •

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES OF NH, Manchester, NH o 2018-Present
Statewide private nonprofit that works to advance the well-being of children and families through an array of
communlty-ba^d sen/ices.

Chief Operating Officer
•  , Oversees all.aspects of program delivery including; fiscal and personnel management, quality assurance and

program development

ROCKPORT MORTGAGE CORPORATION, Gloucester, MA • 2008-2017
Leading-national lender of US Housing & Urban Development Insured commercial loans in health■^a^e, multifemily
and affordable housing sectors.

Vice President, Operations & Quality Control
•  Report to principals with.overall responsibility for achieving strategic objectives through ovet;si9tit of the day-to

day operations of five multi-disciplinary underwriting teams by providing support at the transacbohai level as
. well as In the development.of procedures and operating prar^ces to match RMC's continued growth. .

•  Ensure RMC'Scornpliance with their federally mandated Quality Control Plan through employee development
initiatives, monitoring of RMC'S operational practices while Integrating new HUD directives into RMC!S existing
best practices.

IVES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATES, Manchester, NH *^2005-2016
Consultancy providing strategic planning and leadership development .to public, private and nonprofit companies
throughout New England.

Principal; . ^
Design and facilitate customized corporate retreats, including strategic planning sessions, executive and Board of
Dir^ors' training and development, creation or re^ffinnation of visbn, mission and values and efforts to re-align
leadership around key priorities and future direction ofthe organization. Integrate opportunities to shift -
of^nizatlonal culture to more open and caridid communications.
•  Led an 18-month comprehensive change initiative that: •

o Resulted.in the development of a transition plan for the assimilation of an Interim Executive Director
Including an operations plan that aimed to recalibrate the culture;

•. Transformed climate of accountebiiity for a $55M client by implementing Balanced Scorecard strategic
. measurement systern. Designed, coordinated and facilitated.on-site internal and "external analysis of 11 retail

loeatlons'ln 9 stetes, analyzing threats and weaknesses in business to build a platform for growth.

CAREER NOTE: Concuirent with cor>sulting enterprise (2006-2010), designed and taught introductory and upper level
psychology and sociology courses at Granite State College in Concord, Manchester and Portsmouth, New Hampshire.



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING, Concord, NH o 2001-2005 '
Statewide nonprofit offering long-term care, employment, transportation, advocacy, and other community-based ,
services.

Acting Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
Led Internal operations, including service and program delivery, finance, human resources, fundraising and
marketing. Transformed organization's culture by promoting a climate of excellence, systemic solutions and
learning that benefited the organization and individual employees. Evaluated operational results and facilitated
business processes and controls.that promoted'efficiency and internal information flow. Developed short- and
long-range operating plans. Supported up to'14 management-level employees, staff of 90, arid $13M annual
operating budget. Held complete performance management authority as well as autonomy to engage in private
and state/federal contracts.

•  Increased revenue by-78% with more effective grant administration, successful applicatio.ns for new
competitive grants, initiating a comprehensive development / fundraising plan, and Increasing the fee-for-
service lines of business.

•  Increased consumers served from 400 to 3,000+individuals within three-year period by restructuring existing
programs, developing new programs and increasing program accountability with monthly management reports.

•  Established foundation for 36-monfri capacity building plan -to enhance infrastructure and overall operations by
conducting full orgaRizational audit and successfully presenting .to Board of Directors.

o  Expanded services and leveraged long-term grant opportunity through company acquisition. Successfully
integrated organizational cultures and business practices, including human resource policies, management
teams and compensatlon/benefite.

•  Recommended, designed and implemented internal controls and operating procedures for all departments
(Human Resources, Finance, Pulilic Relations/ Development, Long-Term Care, Community Living and
Employment Services).

•  Increased efficiency, raised credibility of financial reporting and reduced headcount by implementing state of
the art technology with expertise of retained IT consultant

N^ HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION, SERVICES FOR*
BLIND AND VISUALLY lMPAIRED;Concord, NH • 1992-2000 .
Statewide oiganization providing Regisfry of Legal Blindness, Sight Services for Independent Living, Vocational
Rehabilitation and a Business Enterprise program. - .

Statewide Director

Managed professional staff of 8 to deliver services that included 15 statewide rehabilitative support groups, career
counseling and vending machine/food service enterprises In State and Federal buildings.. .
• Awarded $1.2M 3-year federal grant to provide peer support services in 15 locations across the state
+  Led Department to'highest rank in standards and benchmarks among Tether regibnal offices.
•  Enhanced team atmosphere by integrating 4 distinct statewide programs irito a cohesive unit.
•  Cultivated relationships and formal partnerships with various stakeholders In the statewide network of social

and human services and employment arenas.

EDUCATION

-Doctorate In "Human and Organizational Systems
Master of Arts In Human Development

Relding Graduate University, Santa Barbara," California

Masterof Arts/CAGS in Rehabilitation Counseling
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology and Philosophy
Assumption College, Worcester, Massachusetts



ANTHONY F. CHEEK, JR\
464 Chestnut St

Manchester, NH 03105 •
• Phone: (603) 518m 13
Email: cheekt@cfsnh.org

EXPERIENCE Child & Family Services Manchester. NH

01/11-Pmsent Vice Presldent/CFO

Oversee finance, human resource and Information technology functions for a private non-profit
•. human sen/ices agency vy/fft 300 employees and a budget of $12 Mlllion.

Fountains America. Inc.. Prttsfieid. NH

3/07-1/11 , Vice President/Director of Finance ■

Overall responsibility for the corporate finance, human resource and information' technology
functions of a US holding coivpany and its three operating divisions, all subsidiaries of fountains
pic headquartered in the UK.

9  US budget responsibility $7 Million, Group budget $100 Million,

o ' Prepare and monitor annual budgets.
o  Provide monthly financial analysis and forecasts to US President and UK group CFO.

o  Manage corporate risk matters including legal, insurance and compliance issues,

o  Oversee corporate tax matters and accounting standards compliance.

®  Manage accounting department staff of sbc for maximum efficiency and
responsiveness to intemal and external stakeholders.

•  Manage all human resource and payroll functions.

• • Manage IT Infrastructure and support needs.

•' Work with US President and Divisioh Presidents on strategic issues, company growth
initiatives, product and regional cost analysis and acquisition/due diligence projects.

t-akes Reoiori Communltv Services Council. Inc.. Laconia. NH

2/96-3/07 Director of Finance [3I9S-3I07)

Oversee finance, human resource and inhormat'on technology functions for a private nor)-profit
human services 'agencyv/ith 300 emptoyees, involving four corporate entities and a budget of $20

■  fvnilion.

Prepare'and monitor annual budgets; and report monthly to Board of Directors.

Negotiate funding with the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human-
Services;

Prepare and manage contracts wite funding sources and vendors.

Supervisron of 15 staff in finance, human resources and other administrative
fundions.

Administer the agency's personnel policies, compensation and benefit plans.
Ensure compliance with state and federal labor regulation's.
Oversee the installation and support of agency computer systems and networks.

ImplemOTted new IT network Infrastructure for satellite offices tp improve



communication and optimize operations.
Implemented new Medlcaid billing and data collection software system. .

Manage all corporate risk management includlngjegal issues, insurance coverage
and corporate compliance matters. . . •

Assistant Controller (2JQS-y9S).
Manage Accounting department responsible for five interrelated corporations.

Oversee general ledgers for all corporations including timdy monthly closings and
account recondliations.

Present financial statements at monthly Board meeting.

Manage staff of five including A/R, fiJP, and G/L staff.
Responsible for coordination of annual audits.
Assist in preparation and maintenance of annual budgets.

ConVerled general l^ger softv^afe from an in-house systefp to Solomon IV, a Windows
based multi-company software system.

Responsible for the startup of two.new corporations.
Prpvide Ex^utlve Directors with accurafe and timely operating statements and finaficial
analysis
•R^ponsible for daily cash management and banking relationships.

11/87-2/96 Bovd's Potato Chio Co.. Inc.. Lvnn. MA
ControlleiiGeneral Manager >

•  Prepared and analyzed monthly profit and loss stetemenL
•  Monitored and controlled the flo\v of cash receipts and disbursements.

•  Researched, designed specifications for and implemented a computer system to •
automate order entry, A/R, A/P, and inventory control, reducing data entry by 25% and
improving inventory control.

•  Coordinated annual audits.

•  Administered group Insurarrce plans and workers compensation program. Introduced
new programs thatresulted in savings to company and reduced workplace accidents.,

•  Renegotiated union contracts with union management
•  Managed all aspects of transportation and distribution, to ensure prompt deliveries and

customer satisfaction.

'• Super\^sed a staff of 20 Including office, warehouse and transportation persohnel.-

EDUCATION:

1986 Bachelor of Science In Business,Admjnfstration
University of New Harnoshire. Durham. NH

COMPUTER SKILLS: ■

Advanced computer skills Including Microsoft Excel, Word and Access. • Solomon
Dynamjcs and Sage Accpac accounting systems. Crystal and FRx report writers.



MQNIOUE MCDONALD

EDUCATION

BACHELOR OF SOCIAL WORK; Wheelock College, Bosion, Massachusetts
Major: Social Work

CERTIFICATION. University of Cincinnati, Cincinnati, Ohio
Subject: Thinking For a Change

CERTIFICATION. University of Cincinnati. Cincinnati. Ohio

Assessment: 'Ohio Risk-Assessment

SOCIAL SERVICE EXPERIENCE

-PROGRAM COORDINATOR. STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE

2016-Present

-Oversees and supervises assigned service staff while they are conducting cognitive behavioral group Thinking for a Change
-Evaluates program effectiveness and conducts progress reviews for'perfonnance improvement
-Maintains and monitors data related to inmates' minimum parole date and programming thereby assuring optimal match of client needs with
program scheduling
-Consults with various departments within the Department of Corrections to assure continuity of care and a seamless case plan

CORRECTIONS COUNSELOR/CASE MANAGER. STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE^
2012-2016

-Conduct Ohio Risk Assessment on incoming inmates and provide written summaries
-Maintains certifications ̂ at are necessary to perform job duties and responsibilities
-Prepare parole synopsis for adult parole board and attend parole hearings
-Train new case managers on department policies and case management functions
-Interview inmates requesting a protective custody board for clarity and understanding of issue
-Facilitates regular contact with outside agencies and programs such as alcohol / drug treatment facilities and mental health agencies
for successful re-entry of population
-Assist inmates with resolving pending legal issues prior to parole
-Complete online disability applications with inmates and facilitate appointment with doctor to assess for disability
-Facilitate cognitive behavioral class; Thinking for a Change numerous times per year
-Prepare and conduct monthly class boards throughout the facility at all levels of classification
-Consults with numerous DOC departments to assure continuity of care and a seamless case plan

PARENT SUPPORT STAFF. CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES. MANCHESTER. NEW HAMPSHIRE

2011-2012-Part Time

-Conducted weekly home visits with pregnant women and mothers of children under the age of one . '
-Provided support and education on the stages of development during pregnancy and infancy
-Connected clients with resources within their community
-Developed case plans with mothers addressing the child's needs as well as their own

INTAKE COORrHNATOR/SUPERVISOR. FAMILIES IN TRANSITION. MANCHESTER. NEW HAMPSHIRE

2008-2012

-Supervised intake interviews, addressed incomplete files and managed intake schedules for case managers . •
-Educated case managers and interns on eligibility procedures to ensure they were following agency, state and federal guideline
-Managed intern and group evaluations in conjunction with college professors
-Directed The Homeless Management Information System for the agency
-Coordinated relationships with area homeless shelters to ensure access to programs



CASE MANAGER. FAMILIES IN TRANSITION. MANCHESTER. NEW HAMPSfflRE

2002-2008 ^ '

-Provided support to clients applying for disability and attended appeal hearings
-Designed, implemented and coordinated individual case plans for clients vyithin the homeless population
-Maintained collateral contacts with homeless shelters, alcohol / drug treatment facilities and mental health agencies within the greater
Manchester and Concord area for referral purposes
-Counseled clients on independent living skills, home and work adjustments and parenting
-Supervised and organized team meetings involving community agencies
•Provided on call clinical support for familieis in crisis

J

FAMILY WORKER. SOUTHERN hJH SERVICES. MANCHESTER. NEW HAMPSHIRE

1999-2002

•Assisted in setting family goals and creating plans of action
-Conducted weekly home visits to assist in follow through of action plans
-Participated in ongoing Head Start recruitment
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REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the NH Department of Coireelions to accept and expend a Residential Substance Abuse Treatment sub
grant from the NH Department of Justiee in the amount of $21,204.00 to implement family focused parenting
skills programs for incarcerated men and women with substance use issues, for the period beginning upon
Governor and Executive Council approval, through December 31, 2018. 100% Agency Income. (Federal at
origin).

Funds are to be budgeted in an account, Fatherhood Grant, Accounting Unit 02-46-46-460510-83340000 as

follows:

Grant Title: Fatherhood Grant

Account Description
SFY2018 SFY 2018 SFY2018

rURRFNT R POT JEST AnnjsTEn

020-500200 . SuddHcs _ 556.00 556.00

030-500311 Equinment - 920.00 920.00

037-500173 Computer Hardware - 1,762.00 1,762.00

038-509038 Computer Software - 2,796.00 2,796.00

102-500731 Contracts for Program Serv - 15,170.00 15,170.00

Totals - 21,204.00 21,204.00

Source of Funds:

009-407 28 I Agency Income (21.204.00) (21.204.00)

EXPLANATION

The NH Department of Corrections will utilize the Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) funding to
implement a Parenting Wisely program at the Family Connections Centers within the NH Correctional facilities.
The goal of the program will be to give persons under departmental control who are parents with substance use
disorders the skills needed to improve family relationships. Parenting Wisely is an evidence-based course that
has demonstrated a reduction in teen alcohol and drug use, a reduction in aggressive behavior, and improved
family communication. The program targets improvement of parent's behavior (intervention) while reinforcing a
positive home life for the children (prevention). As correctional facilities generally respond to substance abuse

Promoting Public SaTeiy Through imegrity, Respect, Professionalism, Collaboration and Accountability
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issues through intervenlion,.this pilot parenting program will be launched with hopes of a positive impact on
prevention of the cycle of substance misuse that is unintentionally taught to youth growing up with parents who
engage in substance misuse themselves.

Parenting is extremely stressful for those separated from their children for long periods of time due to
imprisonment, and the additional stressors of trying to reunite with family members, exploring job potentials, and
striving to stay clean and sober. Parenting Wisely will introduce persons under departmental control who are
parents to real-life skills for. coping with str^s, thus reducing the chances of reverting to substance use. The
program will be available to minimum security men and women residents who participate in the Family
Connections Center. v

The NH Department of Corrections will utilize the RSAT funding.to purchase parenting curriculums, laptops and
video projectors, and also contract with Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, a private non-profit child
advocacy organization, to provide staff to assist in facilitating the curriculums.

The Residential Abuse Treatment sub grant budget does not include Indirect Costs as these costs are not part of
the award.

In the event that these funds no longer become available State general funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully Submitted,

Haen

Commissioner

Promoting Public Safely Through Integrily, Respect, Professionalism. Colbboration and Accoumahiliiy
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANprNG

This Memonmdum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into between the NH Department of
Justice and the NH Depaitment of Corrections.

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this MOU is to assist (he New Hampshire Department of Corrections in
supplementing its substance use disorder treatment program at the Northern Correctional Facility
and the Concord Prison for Men by expanding its curricula to include "Parenting Wisely" and
other evidence-based treatment modalities as approved in their application #2017RSA34.

n.BACKGROUND:

The New Hampshire Department of Justice has been designated the State Administering Agency
for the Residential Substance Abuse Treatment C'RSAT*) Grant Program for the State of New
Hampshire. The 2016-2017 RSAT awards were set aside to be combined into one request for
proposals to all correctional facilities in the state. Funding is being provided by the US

. D^artment of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) in the form of a formula grant As
with all federal funding, future funding is not guaranteed nor should be expected.

in. TERM OF AGREEMENT:

This subaward will commence upon Governor and Executive Council approval and will expire
on December 31,2018, with the option, at the agreemeot of both parties, to extend the term of
the subaward via Amendment and with (be approval of Governor and Executive Council.

IV. AGREEMENT:

Parties to this MOU agree to (he following:

NH Department of Corrections will, either directly or through its agents/contractors:

•  Follow state guidelines, rules and regulations regarding procurement of supplies and
other items pursuant to DOC Application #2016RSA34;

• Adhere to program requirements such as random dnig/alcohol testing of participants,
provide comprehensive aftercare for participants who leave the program, and maintain a
database of program data points (att^ed as Appendix E).

•  Provide either monthly or quarterly expenditure reports within fifteen days of the end of
the reporting period to reflect expenditures made against the subgrant award until the

• award is fully expended;

•  Provide a narrative and data on a quarterly basis on the progress of the program,
including number of program participants, the ratio of program .participants being
randomly tested for illicit substance vs. the number of positive tests, ̂ e number of
participants who snccessfully complete the program and the disposition of their cases, the

lof2 Initials
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number of participants who were unsuccessful in completing the program and the
reason(s) why, and other data points as outlined in App^dix E.

Adhere to the requirements of the expending of federal funds as outlined in 2 CFR §200
and the Federal Financial Guide.

Must allow access to backrup financial documentation, program protocols and other grant
related programmatic and financial materials to the NH Department of Justice and/or the
United States Dq)arlment of Justice at reasonable times as may be requested.

Submit to enhanced desk reviews and/or site visits by the New Hampshire Dq)artmenl of
Justice and/or the Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S.
Department of Justice.

NH Department of Justice will, either directly or through its agents/contractors:

•  Enter into a one-time subgrant not to exceed $21,204.00 for the express purpose of
enhancing the NHDOC's Substance Abuse Treatment Program at the Northern
Correctional Facility and the Prison for Men in Concord. Future funding is not
guaranteed nor to be expected.

•  Provide technical support in managing programs that are funded by federal funds,
including advising on allowable vs. disallowed expenses and guidance on quarterly
reporting and other programmatic requirements.

•  Ensure that the financial and programmatic requirements of the Residential Substance.
. Abuse Treatment Program administered by the Bureau of.Justicc Assistance arc adhered
to by virtue of enhanced desk reviews, audits, site visits or other means as deemed
necessary. Desk reviews and/or site visits will occur at least one time per calendar year.

• Agree to reimburse timely filed expenditure reports within fourteen days of receipt.

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED have read and agree with this MOU.

GordorTJ. MacDonald, Attorney General
NH Department of Justice

Dale: ')■

I-fcfcn Hanks, UCmnussioner
NH Department of Corrections

Dale:
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R3ESIDENTIAL SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT PROGRAM

GtJTDELTNEg AND CONDTTIONS

I, the below-named individual, on behalf of the below-named agency (hereinafter
referred to as "subgrantec"), am legally authorized to submit and accept grants on behalf of
the applicant agency, and hereby certify that the grant program outlin^ in this application
package, if funded by Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program grant funds, will
adhere to the following guidelines and conditions:

1. The subgrantee assures that it will comply with the regulations, policies, and

guidelines to satisfy requirements of the Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice
Assistance, Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program. This includes random
drug testing of RSAT program participants before, during and after participation, and
a commitment to providing mandatory aftercare services to participants who have left
the program.

2. The subgrantee agrees to adhere to the financial and administrative requirements as
set forth in the current edition of the Office of Justice Programs "Financial Guide**.

3. The subgrantee assures that federal funds received for this grant program will not be
used to supplant Stale and local fimds that would otherwise be available for the program's
purpose. The subgrantee further assures that the Residential Substance Abuse Treatment
Program grant funds will be expended only for purposes and activities covered by the
subgrantee*s approved plication.

4. The subgrantee agrees to provide information on the program supported vrith
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program grant funds as requested by the United
States Department of Justice and the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit, and to retain grant-related documentation for three (3).years after the
close ofthe grant award period.

5. The subgrantee authorizes representatives from the United States Department of
justice and the New Hampshire Department of Justice to access and examine all records,
books, p^>ers, and/or documents related to this Residential Substance Abuse Treatment
Program. Further, the subgrantee agiw to submit to performance monitoring visits by the
New Hampshire Department of Justice and/or the United States Department of Justice on a.
periodic basis.

6. The subgrantee agrees to maintain detailed time and attendance records for any and
all personnel positions funded with Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program grant
funds.



GUIDELINES ATffl CONDITIONS ̂Continued)

7. The subgrantec agrees that all Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program grant
funds will be expended on Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program allowable
activities as described in the subgrantee's program abstract narrative. The subgrantec must
obtain prior written qiproval from the New Hampshire Department of Justice in order to
make any dtanges in program activities, designs, budget plans or the grant ending date which
were set forth in the subgrantee's application.

8. Equipment purchased with Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program grant

funds shall be Year 2000 compliant and shall be listed by the subgrantec on the iagency
inventory. TTie inventory must include the item de^ption, serial number, cost, location,
and percentage of federal Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program grant fimds.

9. The subgrantec agrees that the title to any equipment purchased Residenti^
Substance Abuse Treatment Program funds will revert back to the New Hampshire
Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit, when it is no longer being used for
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program purposes for \Ndiich it was acquired.

10. The subgrantec agrees to provide for an annual audit of the Residential Substance
Abuse Treatment Program. Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program fimds will only
pay its prorated share of the audit. This prorated share is the percentage ofthe Residential
Substance Abuse Treatment Program grant award compared to the total agency budget The
audit shall be conducted in accordance with 0MB Circular No. A-133 (revised 06/24/97). A
copy ofthe completed audit report and management letters shall be sent to the New
Hampsl^ Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit, annually. If the subgrantee is
not required to perform an audit under the revis^ version of 0MB Circular No. A-133, but
an audit is still perfonned, the subgrantee agrees to provide a copy of said audit and
management letters to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit

11. The subgrantee and all its contractors will comply, with ̂  nondiscrimination
requirements of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended, 42
use 3789 (d), or Victims of Crime Act (as appropriate); Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; Subtitle A,
Title n ofthe America With Disabilities Act (ADA) (1990); Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975; Department of Justice Non-
Discrimination Regulations, 28 CFR Part 42, Subparts C, D, E, and G; and Department of
Justice r^ulations on disability discriminations, 28 CFR Part 35 ̂ d Part 39.

RSAT Gnfflt Ai^licukm Last
Revised February 2018



GUIPELTTVES AND CONDITIONS (Continiiftd^.

12. The subgrantee assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Fed^ or State
administrative agency m^es a ̂ ding of discrimination after a due process hearing against
the subgrantM on the grounds of race, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a copy
of-the finding will be subihitted to the New Hampshire Departm«mt ofJustice, Grants
Management Unit and to the Office of Justice Programs, Office for Civil Rights, 810 Seventh
Street NW, Washington DC 20531.

13. The subgrantee agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, the Immigration
and Naturalization Service Employment Eligibility Form (1-9). Tliis form is to be used by the
subgrantee to verify that persons employed by the subgrantee are eligible to work in the
United States.

14. The subgrantee assures that no Federal ̂ propriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the subgrantee, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of congress in connection wth the
making ofany Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal grant or
cooperative agreement If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or
will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of
a Member ofCongress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the
subgrantee shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying
Activities,*' in accordance with its instrucfions.

15. Grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the grant award documenL
No guarantee is given or implied of subs^uent funding in future years.

16. Pursuant to 23 use'§^02,403 and 29 USC §668, the subgrantee ajgrces to
encourage on-the-job seat belt policies and programs for their employees and contractors
when operating company-owned, rented, or personally owned vehicles.

17. The subgrantee assures that all programs will conform to the federal grant program
requirements. Specifically, such programs must include at a minimum the follow^
statutory requirements: be 6 to 12 months in duration, be in a residential correctional or
detention facility, be set apart fit^m the gwefal inn\atc population, utilize urinalysis or other
proven reliable forms of testing, be substantially focu^ on the substance abuse problems of
the inmate, and be intended to develop the cognitive, behavioral, social, vocational, and other
skills necessary to solve a substance abuse or related problem.'

RSAT Grant Application Last
Revised: Febiuary 2018



18. All materials publici^g or resulting from award activities shall contain an
acknowledgment of the awarding agency assistance. An acknowledgment of support shall be
made through use ofthe following or comparable footnotc:."This project was supported by
Award No. 2017-RT-BX-0032 awarded by the Bureau of Justice A^istance, U.S.
Department ofJustice and administered through the New Hampshire Department ofJustice."

19. Any publications (written, visual or sound), whether published through Federal
grant funds or matching funds, shall contain the following stalemqits: "This project was
support^ by Grant No. 2017-RT-BX-W32 awarded by the Bureau of Justice Assistance, ^
U.S. D^iairtment of Justice. Points of view in this document are those of the author and do
not necessarily represent the official position or policies ofthe U.S. Department ofJustice.

20. The subgrantw understatids and agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either
directly or indirectly, in support of any contract or subaward to either the As^ciation of
Community Oiganizations for Reform Now (ACORN) or its subsidiaries without the express
prior written approval of the Office of Justice Programs, US Department of Justice.

21. The ̂bgrantee understands and agrees that the RSAT program be utUizlhg only
evidence-ba^ practices and will be randomly testing RSAT program participants for licit
and illicit substances wdiile in the program.

C

Financial Officer

Head ofAgency Date:

^ Date: —

RSAT Grant Application
Revised' February 2018



DEPARTMENT OF AJSTTCE

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION,
INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

This certification is required by the regulations implcraenting Executive Order 12549,
Debarment and Suspension, 28 CFR §67.510, Participants' responsibilities. The intent ofthis
Order was to ensure that no recipient of federal funds had been restricted fi-om conducting
business with the federal government due to any of the causes listed in 28 CFR §i57.305 and
28 CFR §67.405.

By signing this document, you are certifying that neither your agency, nor its
principals are presently debaned, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded fit)m participation in any transaction by any Federal dqjartment or
agency.

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Name and Title of Authorized Representative

^-Sljnature^^' ^ Datb '

of Corr<.c.-fiiry\3 Cmrpri:/^
Name and Address of Agency

RSAT Grant A|^icatibn Last
Revised' Febniary 2018



Non-supplanting Certification

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as prc-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply
documeniaiion demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial C^ide (P^ II,
Chapter 3). httD://www.oip.usdoi.gov/financialguide/part2/Dart2chaD3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention
A grantee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would
be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it must be able to
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be, but is not
limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes ofa county or
municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
making determinations about cmploynient. The documentation must describe the terminated
positions and that the termination is because of Jack of the availability of State or local funds.

The New Hampshire Department of Corrections (Applicant) certifies that any funds awarded

through grant number 2017RSA34 shall be used to supplement existing funds for program

activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederai funds that have been appropriated for the

purposes and goals of the grant.

The al (Applicant) understands that supplanting

violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future

funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies,

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title:_

Signature: ii/0 Date: <3 | ^ 11 S


